
 

 

 
NORRIS CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 11, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 

 
Agenda 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Agenda Approval 
 

III. Hear the Public 
 

IV. Minutes/Notes  

a. Consideration of Approving February 12, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

V. Old Business       

a. Update on Safe Routes to Schools Project 

b. Update on SIA Sawmill Road Project  

c. Update on Facilities Condition 
i. Setting a Facilities Meeting 

d. Capital Outlay Note – Utility  

e. Discussion on Storm Sewer System 
i. Consideration of Second Reading of Ordinance #672, entitled, “An Ordinance of the City of Norris, 

Tennessee, Establishing a Stormwater Utility” 
ii. Fee Structure 

f. Discussion and Consideration related to City of Norris Online Presence 
 

VI. New Business 

a. Consideration of Confirming Mayoral Appoints to City Boards, Commissions, and Committees 

b. Consideration of Approving Watershed Timber Sale 

c. Consideration of Awarding Bid and Approving Resolution #1-2024, entitled, “A Resolution Approving an 
Agreement Between the City of Norris and Elizabeth H. Cochran for Stage Manager of Norris Little 
Theatre 75th Anniversary Theater Production” 

d. Discussion and Consideration of Utility Tree Safety 

e. Consideration of Resolution #2-2024, entitled, “A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor and City Manager 
to Submit an Application for the Norris Area Community Foundation 2024 Grant.” 

f. Consideration of Resolution #3-2024, entitled, “A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Establish 
a Policy with the Clinton Utilities Board to Require the City’s Approval Prior to Utility Service 
Activation.” 

g. Consideration of First Reading of Ordinance #673, entitled, “An Ordinance of the City of Norris, 
Tennessee, Amending the Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2023 and Ending June 30, 
2024” 

h. Consideration of Resolution #4-2024, entitled, “A Resolution Approving an Agreement Between the 
City of Norris and Community Development Partners, LLC for Administrative Consulting Assistance of 
the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund (SLFRF) of the Tennessee Department of 
Environment and Conservation American Rescue Plan Act Competitive Project” 

 
VII. Department Reports 

a. City Manager 

b. Police 

c. Fire 

d. Water & Sewer 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  1



 

 

e. Public Works 

f. Parks & Recreation 
 

VIII. Bills Payable 
 

IX. Minutes and Reports      

a. Recreation Commission 

b. Watershed Board 

c. Tree Commission  

d. Animal Shelter Commission 

e. Community Development Board 

f. Little Theatre 

g. Planning/BZA 

h. Archives Board 
 

X. Adjourn 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  2



Page 1 of 3 
 

Norris City Council 
Regular Meeting 

 
February 12, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Minutes 
 
The regular meeting of the City Council of Norris Tennessee convened February 12, 2024 at 6:00 pm.  
 
The following Councilmembers were present:  Bill Grieve, Will Grinder, Mayor Chris Mitchell, Chuck 
Nicholson and Loretta Painter.  
 
Also, present were Charles Adam Ledford, City Manager, Bailey Whited, Assistant City Manager and 
Sandy Johnson, City Recorder and representatives of the press from Courier News and the Norris 
Bulletin.   
 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor Mitchell. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Mayor Mitchell moved item #1 up from New Business, the representative of Pugh CPA up and also 
moved up Minutes and Reports (Boards and Commissions) Recreation Commission, Brianne Kibler, 
Chair, Recreation Commission, before Minutes. 
 
HEAR FROM THE PUBLIC – No comments 
 
MINUTES 
APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 8, 2024 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Councilmember Grieve made a motion to approve and Councilmember Nicholson seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously by voice vote with Councilmembers Grieve, Grinder, Nicholson, Painter, and Mayor 
Mitchell voting “Aye.”   
 
APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 8, 2024 PUBLIC HEARING MEETING MINUTES 
Councilmember Nicholson made a motion approve and Councilmember Painter seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously by voice vote with Councilmembers Grieve, Grinder, Nicholson, Painter, and Mayor 
Mitchell voting “Aye.”   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 
Mr. Whited reported the project deadline of March 31, 2024 is approaching therefore, we are at a 
crossroad of either extending or terminating the contract.  He explained this project has been on-going 
since 2014 and it would require the city to pay back approximately $10,500.00 if we were to terminate the 
project.  Councilmember Nicholson made a motion to extend and Councilmember Grinder seconded.  
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote with Councilmembers Grieve, Grinder, Nicholson, Painter, 
and Mayor Mitchell voting “Aye.”    
 
SIA SAWMILL ROAD PROJECT 
Mr. Ledford reported TDOT is still in the process of hiring someone to handle the property valuations 
needed for the project to proceed.   
 
UPDATE ON FACILITIES CONDITION  
Mr. Ledford reported the contractor requested to reschedule for later this month.  He stated he will have 
information to council at the March meeting. 
 
CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE 
Mayor Mitchell stated he wants to leave this on the agenda until it is needed. 
 
 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  3



Page 2 of 3 
 

DISCUSSION ON STORM SEWER SYSTEM AND FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 
Mr. Ledford provided an overview of the ordinance.  Mayor Mitchell explained this would be a four-step 
process: 1) Put the ordinance in in place; 2) Establish a fee structure; 3) Create a budget; 4) Create the 
organizational structure to administer it.  After a brief discussion, Councilmember Grinder moved to 
approve the first reading of ordinance as presented and Councilmember Grieve seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously by voice vote with Councilmembers Grieve, Grinder, Nicholson, Painter, and Mayor 
Mitchell voting “Aye.”   
 
Councilmember Painter moved to schedule a public hearing on Ordinance #672, entitled, “An Ordinance 
of the City of Norris, Tennessee, establishing a Stormwater Utility on March 11, 20254 at 5:00 p.m. and a 
Workshop to discuss methods and development of fee structure for Stormwater Utility, March 11, 2024 at 
5:15 p.m., and Councilmember Nicholson seconded.  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote with 
Councilmembers Grieve, Grinder, Nicholson, Painter, and Mayor Mitchell voting “Aye.”   
 
REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION OF AWARDING BID FOR MINI-EXCAVATOR 
Mr. Ledford reported back in December 2023, bids were sent out and on Friday, February 9, 2024 at 2:00 
p.m. Bailey Whited, Tony Wilkerson, Water Superintendent and Kerry Hevel, Public Works Director, 
opened the 5 bids and after deliberating, staff decided the Bobcat E48-R2 best fits their needs.  They are 
also looking to purchase a trailer to haul the equipment that will cost approximately $15,500.00.  Mr. 
Ledford reported the equipment would be split between the Watershed, Public Works and Water 
Department.  Councilmember Painter moved to approve the bid from Bobcat of Knoxville for the purchase 
of the equipment in the amount of $65,675.01.   
 
REVIEW AND DISCUSSOIN ON NORRIS ENTRANCE SIGN PROJECT 
Councilmember Grinder gave a brief description of the proposed signs the Community Development 
Board (CDB) presented earlier at a City Council workshop.  Mayor Mitchell encouraged Councilmember 
Grinder and CDB to wait until more funds are available from the hotel/motel tax revenue from the 
Appalachian Museum RV Park.  He stated with just a small budget of $5000.00, it just makes sense to 
wait for more funds to go along with the funds they have now for bigger and better signs.  Laurie Templin, 
CDB member, asked for guidance and directions on how the board should move forward.  Mayor Mitchell 
stated he would advise the board to have a public meeting and get a broader view and get the residents 
consensus and it should be done with great respect and represent the style and how proud we are of our 
community and should be first class.  Many residents spoke in regards to the signs and their desires of 
what the signs should represent and their locations.  George Miceli, CDB member, asked for clarification 
of what he believes the council and members of the audience are suggesting, a comprehensive “50 year” 
plan, and communicate “pride of place and history” in their decisions.  Councilmember Grinder made a 
motion to refer this project back to the Community Development Board for further review and 
Councilmember Painter seconded.   The motion passed unanimously by voice vote with Councilmembers 
Grieve, Grinder, Nicholson, Painter, and Mayor Mitchell voting “Aye 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
DISCUSSION AND COSIDERATION RELATED TO CITY OF NORRIS ONLINE PRESENCE 
Mr. Ledford reported that Councilmember Nicholson requested him to add this item to the agenda.  
Councilmember Nicholson stated interest in the city having a Facebook account to keep residents 
informed of things going on in within the city.  Several Council members spoke against the use of 
Facebook, some spoke in favor of having some sort of push notification process to communicate 
emergencies.  There were also discussions of relying more on the City's website for helpful and 
emergency information.  Mr. Ledford stated his concern of having a Facebook was about monitoring it on 
a daily basis and the manpower necessary to incorporate it.  He also stated that his concern was it might 
start small then turn into something much larger than we can handle.   
 
DISCUSSION & CONSIDERATION OF THE PROJECT FOR LOCAL PARKS & RECREATION FUND 
(LPRF) INTENT TO APPLY PROCESS  
Mayor Mitchell distributed a draft copy outline of a master plan for city parks for review.  An application to 
apply for a 50/50 match grant will be used to renovate the tennis courts with dual use capability for 
pickleball, adding a basketball court and possibly refurbishing of the bathrooms.  Councilmember 
Nicholson moved to approve Mayor Mitchell signing the application for the grant and Councilmember 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  4



Page 3 of 3 
 

Grinder seconded.   The motion passed unanimously by voice vote with Councilmembers Grieve, Grinder, 
Nicholson, Painter, and Mayor Mitchell voting “Aye.”    

 
Mayor Mitchell summarized council’s overall efforts to improve Norris for its residents. Efforts have 
focused on better wages and working conditions for employees, better equipment for them to do their 
jobs, and improvements in infrastructure – this proposed outdoor sports center being one of those 
improvements. 
 
DEPARTMENT AND COMMISSIONS REPORTS 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – A copy of the report as presented is attached as “Exhibit A” 
 
POLICE DEPARTMENT – A copy of the report as presented is attached as “Exhibit B” 
 
FIRE DEPARTMENT – A copy of the report as presented is attached as “Exhibit C” 
 
NORRIS WATER COMMISSION (NWC) – A copy of the report as presented is attached as “Exhibit D” 
 
PUBLIC WORKS - A copy of the report as presented is attached as “Exhibit E” 
 
BILLS PAYABLE – No report.  
 
MINUTES AND REPORTS (BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS) 
WATERSHED BOARD – Joe Feeman reported they have scheduled a timber sale for Thursday, 
February 29, 2024.   
 
TREE COMMISSION – Councilmember Nicholson, Chair of Tree Commission, reported they plan to 
begin planting trees in the Spring in the Creamery Park and the Arbor Day Celebration will be March 28, 
2024. 
 
ANIMAL SHELTER COMMISSION – No report. 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT – No report. 
 
LITTLE THEATRE – Councilmember Painter reported the cast has been picked and practice has begun. 
 
PLANNING/BZA – Joe Feeman reported they approved the Big Creek Marine’s building site plan. 
 
ARCHIVES – Joe Feeman reported they are still trying to get the data off the old computer. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Councilmember Grinder moved to adjourn at 8:35 p.m. and Councilmember Grinder seconded.  The 
motion passed unanimously by voice vote with Councilmembers Grieve, Grinder, Nicholson, Painter and 
Mayor Mitchell voting “Aye.”   
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Sandy Johnson, City Recorder 

 
APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL 
March 11, 2024 
 
 
___________________________________                 
Chris Mitchell, Mayor      

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  5



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORRIS, TENNESSEE, ESTABLISHING A STORMWATER UTILITY  
 
  ORDINANCE NO. 672           
 
 WHEREAS, The Federal Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., requires certain political 
entities, such as the City of Norris, to implement stormwater management programs within prescribed 
time frames, and the Environmental Protection Agency, pursuant to the Federal Clean Water Act, 33 
U.S.C. 1251 et seq., has published rules for stormwater outfall permits; 
 
 WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1101, provides that the purpose of the 
stormwater management statute is to facilitate municipal compliance with the Water Quality Act of 
1977, and applicable EPA regulations, particularly those arising from § 405 of the Water Quality Act of 
1987, and § 402(p) of the Clean Water Act of 1977, and to enable municipalities to regulate stormwater 
discharges, establish a system of drainage facilities, construct and operate a system of stormwater 
management and flood control facilities, and to “fix and require payment of fees for the privilege of 
discharging stormwater,” 
 
 WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1105 provides that among other powers 
municipalities have with respect to stormwater facilities, is the power by ordinance or resolution to: 
 (1) Exercise general regulation over the planning, location, construction, and 

operation and maintenance of stormwater facilities in the municipality, whether or not 
owned and operated by the municipality; 

 (2) Adopt any rules and regulations deemed necessary to accomplish the purposes 
of this statute, including the adoption of a system of fees for services and permits; 

 (3) Establish standards to regulate the quantity of stormwater discharged and to 
regulate stormwater contaminants as may be necessary to protect water quality; 

 (4) Review and approve plans and plats for stormwater management in proposed 
subdivisions or commercial developments; 

 (5) Issue permits for stormwater discharges, and for the construction, alteration, 
extension, or repair of stormwater facilities; 

 (6) Suspend or revoke permits when it is determined that the permittee has 
violated any applicable ordinance, resolution, or condition of the permit; 

 (7) Regulate and prohibit discharges into stormwater facilities of sanitary, 
industrial, or commercial sewage or waters that have otherwise been contaminated; 

 (8) Expend funds to remediate or mitigate the detrimental effects of contaminated 
land or other sources of stormwater contamination, whether public or private; and 

  
WHEREAS, The City of Norris desires to develop a stormwater utility to be responsible for the 

operation, construction, and maintenance of stormwater facilities; for stormwater system planning, and 
for review of stormwater development plans for compliance with stormwater management codes. 
  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORRIS, 
TENNESSEE, THAT: 

 
SECTION 1:   Title 16, Chapter 2 be passed and established as presented as the attachment 

Exhibit A. 
 
SECTION 2:    Severability.  Each section, paragraph, sentence, and clause of this ordinance 

is declared to be separate and severable.  The invalidity of any section, 
subsection, paragraph, sentence, or clause shall not affect the validity of any 
other provision of the ordinance. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  6



SECTION 3:    Repealer.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances which are inconsistent with 
any provision of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
inconsistency. 

 
SECTION 4:    Effective.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

approval as required by law. 
 

Adopted First Reading:       ________________ 

Public Hearing:        ________________ 

    

Adopted Second Reading:  _________________ 

  

__________________________________ 

Signed, Mayor 

 

__________________________________ 

Attest, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  7



Exhibit A 

CHAPTER 2 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

SECTION 
16-201. Legisla ve findings and policy. 
16-202. Crea on of stormwater management program. 
16-203. Defini ons. 
16-204. Funding of stormwater management program. 
16-205. Stormwater fund. 
16-206. Opera ng budget. 
16-207. Stormwater user's fees established. 
16-208. Equivalent Residen al Unit (ERU). 
16-209. Property classifica on for stormwater user's fee. 
16-210. Base rate. 
16-211. Adjustments to stormwater user's fees. 
16-212. Property owners to pay charges. 
16-213. Billing procedures and penal es for late payment. 
16-214. Appeals of fees. 
16-215. Enforcement, abatement, penal es, and appeals. 
 

16-201. Legisla ve findings and policy. The Mayor and the City Council of the City of Norris, 
Tennessee; finds, determines, and declares that the stormwater system which provides for the 
collec on, treatment, storage, and disposal of stormwater provides benefits and services 
to all property within the incorporated city limits. Such benefits include, but are not limited to: the 
provision of adequate systems of collec on, conveyance, deten on, treatment, and release of 
stormwater; the reduc on of hazards to property and life resul ng from stormwater runoff; 
improvements in general health and welfare through reduc on of undesirable stormwater condi ons; 
and improvements to the water quality in the stormwater and surface water system and its receiving 
waters.  
 

16-202. Crea on of stormwater management program. For those purposes of the Federal Clean 
Water Act and of Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1101, et seq., there is created a stormwater 
management program which shall consist of a manager or director and such staff as designated and 
appointed by the city manager of the city. The stormwater management program shall be under 
direc on and control of the city manager and shall:  

(1) Administer the acquisi on, design, construc on, maintenance, and opera on of the 
stormwater system, including opera onal and material expenses, and capital improvements designated 
in the capital improvement program; 

(2) Administer and enforce the ordinance comprising this chapter and all regula ons and 
procedures adopted rela ng to the design, construc on, maintenance, opera on, and altera on of the 
stormwater system, including, but not limited to, the quan ty and quality of the stormwater conveyed 
thereby; 

(3) Advise the city manager on ma ers rela ng to the stormwater fund, Equivalent Residen al 
Units (ERU), user fee and other appropriate terms and condi ons which affect the financial stability of 
the fund. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  8



(4) Prepare, revise, and amend a comprehensive stormwater management plan for adop on by 
the municipality's governing body; 

(5) Review construc on plans and approve or deny, inspect, and accept extensions and 
connec ons to the city's stormwater system; 

(6) Assist in the enforcement of regula ons to protect and maintain water quality and quan ty 
within the system in compliance with water quality standards established by local, state, and/or federal 
agencies as now adopted or herea er amended; 

(7) Annually analyze the cost of services and benefits provided, and the system and structure of 
fees, charges, civil penal es, and other revenues of the program.  
 

16-203. Defini ons. For the purpose of this chapter, the following defini ons shall apply: Words 
used in the singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular; words used in the 
present tense shall include the future tense. The word "shall" is mandatory and not discre onary. 
The word "may" is permissive. Words not defined in this sec on shall be construed to have the meaning 
given by common and ordinary use as defined in the latest edi on of Webster's Dic onary. 

(1) "Base rate" means the stormwater user's fee for a detached single family residen al property 
in the city. 

(2) "Construc on" means the erec on, building, acquisi on, altera on, reconstruc on, 
improvement, or extension of stormwater facili es; preliminary planning to determine the economic and 
engineering feasibility of stormwater facili es; the engineering, architectural, legal, fiscal, and economic 
inves ga ons and studies, surveys, designs, plans, working drawings, specifica ons, procedures, and 
other ac on necessary in the construc on of stormwater facili es; and the inspec on and supervision of 
the construc on of stormwater facili es. 

(3) "Developed property" means real property which has been altered from its natural state by 
the crea on or addi on of impervious areas, by the addi on of any buildings, structures, pavement, or 
other improvements. 

(4) “Dry Deten on Pond” is an impoundment or excavated basin for the short-term deten on of 
stormwater runoff from a property undergoing development or from a completed development that 
allows a controlled release from the structure at downstream, pre-development flow rates. 

(5) "Equivalent Residen al Unit" or "ERU" means the average impervious area associated within 
a detached single family residen al property determined pursuant to this chapter. 

(6) "Exempt property" means all proper es of the federal, state, county, and city governments, 
and any of their divisions or subdivisions, and property that does not convey or discharge, directly or 
indirectly, stormwater runoff into the stormwater or flood control facili es of the municipality. 

(7) "Fee" or "stormwater user's fee" means the charge established under this ordinance and 
levied on owners or users of parcels or pieces of real property to fund the costs of stormwater 
management and of opera ng, maintaining, and improving the stormwater system in the municipality. 
The stormwater user's fee is in addi on to any other fee that the municipality has the right to charge 
under any other rule or regula on of the municipality. 

(8) "Fiscal year" means July 1 of a calendar year to June 30 of the next calendar year, both 
inclusive. 

(9) "Impervious surface" means a surface which is compacted or covered with material that is 
resistant to infiltra on by water, including, but not limited to, most conven onally surfaced streets, 
roofs, sidewalks, pa os, driveways, parking lots, and any other oiled, graveled, graded, compacted, or 
any other surface which impedes the natural infiltra on of surface water. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  9



(10) "Impervious surface area" means the number of square feet of horizontal surface covered 
by buildings, and other impervious surfaces. All building measurements shall be made between exterior 
faces of walls, founda ons, columns or other means of support or enclosure. 

(11) "Other developed property" means developed property other than single-family residen al 
property. Such property shall include, but not be limited to, commercial proper es, industrial proper es, 
parking lots, hospitals, schools, recrea onal and cultural facili es, hotels, offices, and churches. 

(12) “Parcel” means any area of land described by a single legal descrip on. 
(13) "Person" means any and all persons, natural or ar ficial, including any individual, firm or 

associa on, and any municipal or private corpora on organized or exis ng under the laws of this or any 
other state or country. 

(14) "Property owner" means the property owner of record as listed in the county's assessment 
roll. A property owner includes any individual, corpora on, firm, partnership, or group of individuals 
ac ng as a unit, and any trustee, receiver, or personal representa ve. 

(15) “Reten on Pond” is a pond or pool designed with addi onal storage capacity to a enuate 
surface runoff during rainfall events.  They consist of a permanent pond area with landscaped banks and 
surroundings to provide addi onal storage capacity during rainfall events. 

(16) "Single family residen al property" means a developed property which serves the primary 
purpose of providing a permanent dwelling unit to a single family. A single-family detached dwelling or a 
townhouse containing an accessory apartment or second dwelling unit is included in this defini on. 

(17) "Stormwater" means stormwater runoff, snow melt runoff, surface runoff, street wash 
waters related to street cleaning or maintenance, infiltra on, and drainage. 

(18) "Stormwater facili es" means the natural or manmade drainage structures, conduits, 
conveyances, waterways, combined sewers, sewers, and all device appurtenances by means of which 
stormwater is collected, transported, pumped, treated, or disposed of. 

(19) "Stormwater management fund" or "fund" means the fund created by this chapter to 
operate, maintain, and improve the city's stormwater system. 

(20) "Stormwater management program" means the planning, design, construc on, regula on, 
improvement, repair, maintenance, and opera on of facili es and programs for minimizing the adverse 
impacts of stormwater runoff, not limited to, but including quality and quan ty. 

(21) "Surface water" includes waters upon the surface of the earth in bounds created naturally 
or ar ficially including, but not limited to, streams, other water courses, lakes, and reservoirs. 

(22) "User" shall mean the owner of record of property subject to the stormwater user's fee 
imposed by this chapter. 

(23) "Undisturbed property" means real property, which has not been altered from its natural 
state by dredging, filling, removal of trees and vegeta on or other ac vi es, which have disturbed or 
altered the topography of soils on the property.  
 

16-204. Funding of stormwater management program. Funding for the stormwater 
management program may include, but not be limited to, the following: 
(1) Stormwater user's fees. 
(2) Civil penal es and damage assessments imposed for or arising from the viola on of the city's 
stormwater management program ordinance. 
(3) Stormwater permit and inspec on fees. 
(4) Grants and any other viable and legal awards. 
(5) Other funds or income obtained from federal, state, local, and private grants, or revolving funds, and 
from the Local Government Public Obliga ons Act of 1986.  
(Tennessee Code Annotated, tle 9, chapter 21). 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  10



To the extent that the stormwater drainage fees collected are insufficient to construct needed 
stormwater drainage facili es, the cost of the same may be paid from such city funds as may be 
determined by the municipality's governing body.  

 
16-205. Stormwater fund. All revenues generated by or on behalf of the stormwater program 

shall be deposited in a stormwater program fund and used exclusively for the stormwater program.  
 
16-206. Opera ng budget. The municipality's governing body shall adopt an opera ng budget 

for the stormwater program each fiscal year. The opera ng budget shall set forth for such fiscal year the 
es mated revenues and the es mated costs for opera ons and maintenance, extension, and 
replacement and debt service.  
 

16-207. Stormwater user's fees established. There shall be imposed on each and every 
developed property in the city, except exempt property, a stormwater user's fee, which shall be set from 

me to me by ordinance and in the manner and amount prescribed by this ordinance.  
Prior to establishing or amending user’s fees, the municipality shall adver se its intent to do so 

by publishing no ce in a newspaper of general circula on in the city at least thirty (30) days in advance 
of the mee ng of the municipality’s governing body which shall consider the adop on of the fee or its 
amendment. 
 

16-208. Equivalent Residen al Unit (ERU).  
(1) Establishment.  There is established for purposes of calcula ng the stormwater user's fee the 

Equivalent Residen al Unit (ERU) equal to six thousand (6,000) square feet of impervious surface area. 
(2) Se ng the ERU. The ERU shall be amended by the municipality's governing body from me 

to me by ordinance. 
(3) Source of ERU. The municipality's governing body shall have the discre on to determine the 

source of the data from which the ERU is established, taking into considera on the general acceptance 
and use of such source on the part of other stormwater systems, and the reliability and general 
accuracy of the source. The municipality's governing body shall have the discre on to determine the 
impervious surface area of other developed property through property tax assessor's rolls or site 
examina on, mapping informa on, aerial photographs, and other reliable informa on.  
 

16-209. Property classifica on for stormwater user's fee. 
(1) Property classifica ons. For purposes of determining the stormwater user's fee, all proper es 

in the city are classified into one (1) of the following classes: 
(a) Single family residen al property; 
(b) Developed property; 
(c) Undeveloped property; 

(i) Disturbed (farm land typically lled); 
(ii) Undisturbed (grass land or forest); 

(d) Exempt property. 
(2) Single family residen al property and fee. The municipality's governing body finds that the 

intensity of development of most parcels of real property in the municipality classified as single family 
residen al is similar and that it would be excessively and unnecessarily expensive to determine precisely 
the square footage of the improvements (such as buildings, structures, and other impervious areas) on 
each such parcel. Therefore, all single-family residen al proper es in the city shall be charged a flat 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  11



stormwater management fee, equal the base rate, regardless of the size of the parcel or the 
improvements. 

(3) Developed property and fee. The fee for developed property (i.e., non-single-family 
residen al property) in the municipality shall be the base rate mul plied by the numerical factor 
obtained by dividing the total impervious surface area (square feet) of the property by one (1) ERU. The 
impervious surface area for other developed property is the square footage for the buildings and 
other improvements on the property.  The minimum stormwater management fee for other 
developed property shall be equal the base rate for single family residen al property.  mes a 
correc on factor based on the following onsite improvements. The improvements and the correc on 
factors are as follows: 

(a) For developed proper es that discharge into onsite reten on or dry deten on ponds 
that regulate discharges not to exceed the historical flow-rate, the correc on factor shall 
be 0.40. 
(b) For developed proper es that u lize other onsite structures that meet the Tennessee 
Department of Environment and Conserva on best management prac ces that reduce 
runoff volumes to within five percent (5%) of the historical flow-rates and can 
demonstrate the improvement of stormwater runoff quality by means of engineering 
principles, the correc on factor shall be 0.55. 
(c) If no onsite improvements exist, the correc on factor shall be 1.0. 

All stormwater runoff from the developed site shall be covered by the improvements listed 
above in order to receive a correc on factor for the en re site. The minimum stormwater management 
fee for other developed property shall equal the base rate for single family residen al property. 

(4) Undeveloped property.  
(a) Disturbed (farm land). Parcels which are disturbed by farming ac vi es which results 
in an annual cycle of plan ng and harvest will be charged a stormwater fee of one (1) 
ERU unless significant erosion is allowed to occur due to an increase in stormwater 
runoff. 
(b) Undisturbed parcels which are undisturbed and remain in a natural state of 
vegeta ve growth (grass land) or forest and are maintained to prevent erosion by 
periodic moving or other appropriate means will not be charged a stormwater fee. 
Undisturbed parcels that are not maintained in appropriate conserva on prac ces will 
be considered to be disturbed and a stormwater user's fee shall be assessed in 
accordance with procedures outlined herein this chapter. 

(5) Exempt property. There shall be no stormwater user's fee for exempt property.  
 

16-210. Base rate. The municipality's governing body shall, by ordinance, establish the base rate 
for the stormwater user's fee. The base rate shall be calculated to ensure adequate revenues to fund the 
costs of stormwater management and to provide for the opera on, maintenance, and capital 
improvements of the stormwater system in the city.  
 

16-211. Adjustments to stormwater user's fees. The stormwater program shall have the right on 
its own ini a ve to adjust upward or downward the stormwater user's fees with respect to any property, 
based on the approximate percentage on any significant varia on in the volume or rate of stormwater, or 
any significant varia on in the quality of stormwater, emana ng from the property, compared to other 
similar proper es. In making determina ons of the similarity of property, the stormwater program shall 
take into considera on the loca on, geography, size, use, impervious area, stormwater facili es on the 
property, and any other factors that have a bearing on the varia on.  

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  12



16-212. Property owners to pay charges. The owner of each non-exempt lot or parcel shall pay 
the stormwater user's fees and charges as provided in this chapter.  

16-213. Billing procedures and penal es for late payment. 
(1) Rate and collec on schedule. The stormwater user's fee will be set at a rate, and collected on 

a schedule established by ordinance. The stormwater fee shall reflect the nature of the property 
classifica on by the Norris Water Commission u lity billing. The stormwater user fee for single-family 
residen al and non-residen al developed property shall be billed and collected monthly. Undeveloped 
proper es will be billed monthly at the rate established by this ordinance if the property is u lized for 
farming ac vi es and allowed to erode and contribute to pollu on of streams, rivers, and ponds here in 
Norris. 

(2) Delinquent bills. The stormwater user's fee shall be billed through the Norris Water 
Commission and paid by mail, online, or in person as per their requirements; and shall become 
delinquent as of the twenty-seventh (27th) of the month of issue, there shall be an addi onal charge of 
ten percent (10%) added thereto.  The water commission will disconnect delinquent customers a er 
forty-three (43) days from the ini al billing, and not be reconnected un l all past due bills have been 
paid in full. 

(3) Penal es for late payment.  Stormwater user’s fees shall be subject to a late fee established 
by ordinance or resolu on.  The municipality shall be en tled to recover a orney’s fees incurred in 
collec ng delinquent drainage fees.  Any charge due under this ordinance which shall not be paid may be 
recovered at law by the municipality. 

(4) Mandatory statement.  Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-221-1112, each bill that 
shall contain stormwater user’s fees shall contain the following statement in bold: 

THIS FEE HAS BEEN MANDATED BY CONGRESS 
 

16-214. Appeals of fees.  
(1) The City of Norris City Council shall hear and decide appeals and requests for variances from 

the requirements of this chapter. 
(2) Variances may be issued in regards to the stormwater user fees and/or property 

classifica on. The stormwater management plan opera ng budget shall not be appealed. 
(3) In passing upon such variances, the Council shall consider all technical evalua ons, all 

relevant factors such as prac ces that meet the Tennessee Department of Environment and 
Conserva on best management prac ces, historical flows versus developed flows, and all standards 
specified in other sec ons of this chapter, and, 

(4) Upon considera on of the factors listed above, and the purposes of this chapter, the Council 
may a ach such condi ons to the gran ng of variances, as it deems necessary to effectuate the 
purposes of this chapter. 

(5) Request for variances must be in wri ng and may be appealed within thirty (30) calendar 
days from the date of the last bill containing stormwater user's fees charges. 

(6) Variances may be issued upon a determina on that the variance is the minimum relief 
necessary, considering the amount of the fee and/or the property classifica on. 

(7) Variances shall only be issued upon: 
(a) A showing of good and sufficient cause; 
(b) A determina on that failure to grant the variance would result in excep onal 
hardship compared to other similarly assessed property; and 
(c) A determina on that the gran ng of a variance will not result in conflict with exis ng 
local laws or ordinances. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  13



(8) Wri en no ce. Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given wri en no ce by 
the City of Norris. 

(9) Record keeping and repor ng. The City of Norris shall maintain the record of all appeal 
ac ons. 

(10) All appeals shall be reviewed and a decision rendered within forty-five days (45) days a er 
the appeal is filed.  

 
16-215. Enforcement, abatement, penal es, and appeals. 
(1) Enforcement and abatement authority. The city manager or his designees shall have the 

authority to issue no ces of viola on and cita ons, and to impose the civil penal es provided in this 
sec on. 

(2) No fica on of viola on.  
(a) Wri en no ce. Whenever the city manager or his/her designee finds that any 
permi ee or any other person discharging stormwater has violated or is viola ng this 
chapter or a permit or order issued hereunder, the city manager may serve upon such 
person wri en no ce of the viola on. Within ten (10) days of this no ce, an explana on 
of the viola on and a plan for the sa sfactory correc on and preven on thereof, to 
include specific required ac ons, shall be submi ed to the city manager. Submission of 
this plan in no way relieves the discharger of liability for any viola ons occurring before 
or a er receipt of the no ce of viola on. 
(b) Consent orders. The city manager or his/her designee is empowered to enter into 
consent orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, or other similar documents 
establishing an agreement with the person responsible for the noncompliance. Such 
orders will include specific ac on to be taken by the person to correct the 
noncompliance within a me period also specified by the order. Consent orders shall 
have the same force and effect as administra ve orders issued pursuant to paragraphs 
(d) and (e) below. 
(c) Show cause hearing. The city manager may order any person who violates this 
chapter or permit or order issued hereunder, to show cause why a proposed 
enforcement ac on should not be taken. No ce shall be served on the person specifying 
the me and place for the mee ng, the proposed enforcement ac on, and the reasons 
for such ac on, and a request that the violator show cause why this proposed 
enforcement ac on should not be taken. The no ce of the mee ng shall be served 
personally or by registered or cer fied mail (return receipt requested) at least ten (10) 
days prior to the hearing. 
(d) Compliance order. When the city manager or his/her designee finds that any person 
has violated or con nues to violate this chapter or a permit or order issued thereunder, 
he/she may issue an order to the violator direc ng that, following a specific me period, 
adequate structures, devices, be installed or procedures implemented and properly 
operated. Orders may also contain such other requirements as might be reasonably 
necessary and appropriate to address the noncompliance, including the construc on of 
appropriate structures, installa on of devices, self-monitoring, and management 
prac ces. 
(e) Cease and desist orders. When the city manager or his/her designee finds that any 
person has violated or con nues to violate this ordinance or any permit or order issued 
hereunder, the city manager may issue an order to cease and desist all such viola ons 
and direct those persons in noncompliance to: 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  14



(i) Comply forthwith; or 
(ii) Take such appropriate remedial or preven ve ac on as may be needed to 
properly address a con nuing or threatened viola on, including hal ng 
opera ons and termina ng the discharge. 

(3) Penal es. Any person who shall commit any act declared unlawful under this chapter, who 
violates any provision of this chapter, who violates the provisions of any permit issued pursuant to this 
ordinance, or who fails or refuses to comply with any lawful communica on or no ce to abate or take 
correc ve ac on by the city manager or his/her designee, shall be guilty of a civil offense. 

(4) Under the authority provided in Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1106, the municipality 
declares that any person viola ng the provisions of this chapter may be assessed a civil penalty by the 
city manager or his/her designee of not less than fi y dollars ($50.00) and not more than five thousand 
dollars ($5,000.00) per day for each day of viola on. Each day of viola on shall cons tute a separate 
viola on. 

(5) Measuring civil penal es. In assessing a civil penalty, the city manager or his/her designee 
may consider: 

(a) The harm done to the public health or the environment; 
(b) Whether the civil penalty imposed will be a substan al economic deterrent to the 
illegal ac vity; 
(c) The economic benefit gained by the violator; 
(d) The amount of effort put forth by the violator to remedy this viola on; 
(e) Any unusual or extraordinary enforcement costs incurred by the municipality; 
(f) The amount of penalty established by ordinance or resolu on for specific categories 
of viola ons; and 
(g) Any equi es of the situa on which outweigh the benefit of imposing any penalty or 
damage assessment. 

(6) Recovery of damages and costs. In addi on to the civil penalty in subsec on (2) above, the 
municipality may recover; 

(a) All damages proximately caused by the violator to the municipality, which may 
include any reasonable expenses incurred in inves ga ng viola ons of, and enforcing 
compliance with, this chapter, or any other actual damages caused by the viola on. 
(b) The costs of the municipality's maintenance of stormwater facili es when the user of 
such facili es fails to maintain them as required by this sec on. 

(7) Other remedies. The municipality may bring legal ac on to enjoin the con nuing viola on of 
this chapter, and the existence of any other remedy, at law or equity, shall be no defense to any such 
ac ons. 

(8) Remedies cumula ve. The remedies set forth in this sec on shall be cumula ve, not 
exclusive, and it shall not be a defense to any ac on, civil or criminal, that one (1) or more of the 
remedies set forth herein has been sought or granted. 

(9) Appeals. Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1106(d), any person aggrieved by 
the imposi on of a civil penalty or damage assessment as provided by this chapter may appeal said 
penalty or damage assessment to the Norris City Council. 

(a) Appeals to be in wri ng. The appeal shall be in wri ng and filed with the city 
recorder within fi een (15) days a er the civil penalty and/or damage assessment is 
served in any manner authorized by law. 
(b) Public hearing. Upon receipt of an appeal, the Norris City Council shall hold a public 
hearing within thirty (30) days. Ten (10) days prior no ce of the me, date, and loca on 
of said hearing shall be published in a daily newspaper of general circula on. Ten (10) 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  15



day no ce by registered mail shall also be provided to the aggrieved party, such no ce 
to be sent to the address provided by the aggrieved party at the me of appeal. The 
decision of the Norris City Council shall be final. 
(c) Appealing decisions of the Norris City Council. Any alleged violator may appeal a 
decision of the board of appeals pursuant to the provisions of Tennessee Code 
Annotated, tle 27, chapter 8.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  16



APPENDIX A 
 Calculating Stormwater User Fees 
 
Calculating Stormwater User Fees can be done in a simple, equitable manner.  The annual budget of the 
Stormwater Utility is divided by the total number of Equivalent Residential Units (ERU’s) in the 
Stormwater System limits.  Division of the result by 12 would yield the monthly fee per ERU.  An 
Equivalent Residential Unit is based on the average square footage of a detached single residential 
family property.  This average can be obtained from a variety of sources.  If the average is not available 
through your tax assessor or another internal department, averages may be obtained from the U.S. 
Census Bureau, your local Area Association of Realtors, or some other credible source.  Each detached 
single residential family property would be one (1) ERU.  Other developed proposer users would divide 
their total amount of impervious surface area (in square feet) by the number of square feet in an ERU, 
to get the number of ERU’s for that property.  The sum of all other developed property ERU’s and single 
family residential ERU’s would be the total number of ERU’s. 
 
Annual Budget.  The annual costs for the storm drainage system includes permitting, maintaining, 
planning, designing, reconstructing, constructing, environmentally restoring, regulating, testing, 
inspection of the system, management and administration, and the establishment of a reserve balance. 
 
Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU).  The average square footage of a single family residential property is 
equivalent to one ERU.* 
 
Total ERU’s.  The Total ERU’s within the limits of the stormwater utility is calculated according to the 
following formula: 
 
 Total ERU’s = Other Developed Property ERU’s + Single Family Residential ERU’s 
 
Single Family Residential User Fee.  The fee that residential users within the limits of the stormwater 
utility pay for their share of the annual budget.  The fee is calculated according to the following formula: 
   
Single Family Residential User Fee = Annual Budget / Total ERU’s within Stormwater Utility limits                                    

                        
 This number should be divided by 12 to establish the monthly User Fee: 
 
 Single Family Residential User Fee / 12 = Monthly Single Family Residential User Fee 
 
Other Developed Property User Fee.  The fee that other developed property users within the limits of 
the stormwater utility pay for their share of the annual budget.  The fee is calculated according to the 
following formula: 
 
 Other Developed Property ERU’s = Impervious Surface Area square feet / ERU square feet                
      
Other Developed Property User Fee = Single Family Residential User Fee x Other Developed Property 
ERU’s  
      
 Other Developed Property User Fee / 12 = Monthly Other Developed Property User Fee 
                                  
* The average square footage of a single-family residential property should be determined by a 
recognized source. 
 
For example: 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  17



  
The U.S. Census Bureau reports the median square footage in the South is 1,648 square feet. 
 
Or: 
 
In Jackson, Tennessee, the average square footage for all such properties sold in 2001 was 1,932 square 
feet, according to the Jackson Area Association of Realtors®. 
 
A comparable source should be used for setting ERU square footage. 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
 Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1107(a), provides that, “All municipalities constructing, 
operating, or maintaining stormwater or flood control facilities are authorized to establish a graduated 
stormwater user’s fee which may be assessed and collected from each user of the stormwater facilities 
provided by the municipality....”  It does not define “user,” providing only that, “To ensure a 
proportionate distribution of all costs to each user or user class, the user’s contribution shall be based 
on factors such as the amount of impervious area utilized by the user, the water quality of user’s 
stormwater runoff or the volume or rate of stormwater runoff....”  It also provides that: 
 
$  “Users whose stormwater runoff is not discharged into or through the stormwater 
and/or flood control facilities of the municipality shall be exempted from the payment of the graduated 
stormwater user fee authorized by this section.”   
 
$  “The fee structure shall provide adjustments for users who construct facilities to retain 
and control the quantity of stormwater runoff.”  
 
 Generally, the term “user” with respect to utilities probably means the beneficial user of the 
utility rather than the title holder of the property.  In Village of Sauget v. Cohn, 610 N.E.2d 104 (Ill. App. 
5th Dist. 1993), an ordinance required that the “user” pay sewer charges, but did not define the term 
“user.” The Court held that the title holder of the property was not the “user,” reasoning that:  
 

This is consistent with the Black’s Law Dictionary definition of user.  Black’s defines a 
user as “[t]he actual exercise or enjoyment of any right, property, drugs, franchise, etc.” 
.... Because the defendant [the title holder of the property] is not the person who 
receives the services, he is not the person who actually exercises or enjoys the benefits 
provided by American Bottoms.  He is, at most, an indirect beneficiary of the services, 
i.e., his properties are more marketable because they have indoor plumbing.”   [At 108]  

 
 It is not clear from Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1107(a) that the municipality can make 
the landowner rather than the tenant or occupant of the property a “user” for the purposes of the 
stormwater user’s fee.  Arguably it limits the city to the actual or beneficial user.  Tennessee Code 
Annotated, § 68-221-1107(b), appears by implication to support that conclusion because it provides that 
the stormwater utility is authorized to enter into a contract with any other public or private utility 
(except an electrical cooperative organized under the Electric Cooperative Law) or city or town to bill 
and collect stormwater fees as a designated item on its utility bill, and to discontinue utility services 
where the stormwater utility fee is not paid.  In most cases any utility bills would be in the name of the 
actual or beneficial user or users of the property.  But that statute may reflect only a method for 
municipalities to collect stormwater management fees through various utility entities rather than an 
implication that cities must impose stormwater management fees on the beneficial users of the 
stormwater utility as opposed to land owners. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  18



 
 An argument can also be made that Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1107(a), authorizes a 
city to name the property owner the “user” within the meaning of that statute.  A number of cases from 
other jurisdictions declare that utility user fees differ from taxes in that the payment of utility service 
fees is voluntary while the payment of taxes is involuntary. [See Pinellas County v. State, 776 So.2d 262 
(Fla. 2001); City of Gary v. Indiana Bell Telephone Co., Inc., 732 N.E.2d 149 (Ind. 2000); Bolt v. City of 
Lansing, 587 N.W.2d 264 (Mich. 1998); State v. City of Port Orange, 650 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1994).]  But our 
sister State of Arkansas has held that mandatory fees levied on property owners under the state’s police 
powers are still user fees rather than taxes. [See Holman v. City of Dierks, 233 S.W.2d 392 (Ark. 1950); 
Vandiver v. Washington County, 628 S.W.2d 1 (Ark. 1982).]    
 In either case, a person who obtains or continues electric, water, even sewer, or most other 
utility services is a voluntary “user” of the service to a degree that does not typically apply to the user of 
a stormwater utility.  In providing that the “user’s contribution [fee] shall be based on factors such as 
the amount of impervious areas utilized by the user, the water quality of user’s stormwater runoff or the 
volume or rate of stormwater runoff,” Tennessee Code Annotated, § 68-221-1107, contemplates that 
virtually all developed property will be subject to a mandatory stormwater management fee.  In 
addition, the stormwater user’s fee connected to the impervious areas of land under that statute is 
more closely tied to the land than is the fee for most other utility services.  The stormwater utility 
service is always “on” with respect to the impervious surface of the land no matter who is the beneficial 
user of other utility services that serve the land.  The decision to develop the land on the part of its 
owner (or even by its occupant) may be voluntary, but any development that leads to the creation of 
impervious area leads to the involuntary subjection of the land to a stormwater user’s fee.  The only way 
the owner (or occupant) of the land can voluntarily “shut-off” the stormwater utility service is perhaps 
to return the land to its natural state.  Finally, the impervious area component of stormwater 
management would necessarily apply to all developed land, including presently-developed land for 
which development decisions have already been made, many years ago. Generally, the extent to which 
property is developed is a function of the past and future decisions of the owner of the property. 
 
 Some of the literature dealing with stormwater utilities also distinguishes between stormwater 
“user” fees which are billed to utility customers in much the same manner as are other utility bills, and 
stormwater assessment fees, which are billed to property owners.  There is no general law in Tennessee 
authorizing cities to impose special assessments for stormwater purposes, but some cities may have 
provisions in their charters generally authorizing them to levy special assessments on property.  Those 
provisions in some cases may be sufficient authority for a particular city to impose the stormwater user’s 
fee as a special assessment on property.  Special assessments are generally not taxes.  The question of 
whether a particular charter permits the stormwater user’s fee to be levied as a special assessment 
should be determined on a case-by-cases basis.   
 

Appendix C 
 

Section 68-221-1101 - Legislative purpose 
 
The purpose of this part is to facilitate compliance with the Water Quality Act of 1977, by municipalities 
which are affected by environmental protection agency (EPA) storm water regulations, particularly 
those arising from § 405 of the Water Quality Act of 1987, and § 402(p) of the Clean Water Act of 1977, 
regulating storm water discharges to protect water quality. This part shall enable municipalities to 
regulate such discharges, to establish a system of drainage facilities, and to fix and require payment of 
fees for the privilege of discharging storm water. This part shall also enable municipalities to construct 
and operate a system of drainage facilities for storm water management and flood control. 

Sec on 68-221-1102 - Part defini ons 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  19



As used in this part, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(1) "Agricultural land" means land used for agriculture, as defined in § 1-3-105; 
 
§ 1-3-105 (2) (A) Agriculture means: 
 

(i)  The land, buildings and machinery used in the commercial production of farm 
products and nursery stock; 
 
(ii)  The activity carried on in connection with the commercial production of farm 
products and nursery stock; and 
 
(iii)  Recreational and educational activities on land used for the commercial 
production of farm products and nursery stock; 

 
(2) "Construction" means the erection, building, acquisition, alteration, reconstruction, improvement or 
extension of storm water facilities; preliminary planning to determine the economic and engineering 
feasibility of storm water facilities; the engineering, architectural, legal, fiscal and economic 
investigations and studies, surveys, designs, plans, working drawings, specifications, procedures, and 
other action necessary in the construction of storm water facilities; and the inspection and supervision 
of the construction of storm water facilities; 
(3) "Contaminant" means any physical, chemical, biological, or radiological substance or matter in water; 
(4) "Municipality" means any incorporated city or town, county, metropolitan or consolidated 
government, or special district of this state empowered to provide storm water facilities; 
(5) "Person" means any and all persons, natural or artificial, including any individual, firm or association 
and any municipal or private corporation organized or existing under the laws of this or any other state 
or country; 
(6) "Qualified farmer or nurseryman" has the meaning as defined in § 67-6-207; 
 
§ 67-6-207 ((E) For purposes of this section, “a qualified farmer or nurseryman” means a person who 
meets one (1) or more of the following criteria: 
 

1. The person is the owner or lessee of agricultural land from which one thousand dollars ($1,000) 
or more of agricultural products were produced and sold during the year, including payments 
from government sources; 

2. The person is in the business of providing for-hire custom agricultural services for the plowing, 
planting, harvesting, growing, raising or processing of agricultural products or for the 
maintenance of agricultural land; 

3. The person is the owner of land that qualifies for taxation under the Agricultural Forest and Open 
Space Land Act of 1976, compiled in chapter 5, part 10 of this title; 

4. The person's federal income tax return contains one (1) or more of the following: 
a. Business activity on IRS schedule F, profit or loss from farming; and 
b. Farm rental activity on IRS form 4835, farm rental income and expenses or schedule E, 

supplemental income and loss; and 
5. The person otherwise establishes to the satisfaction of the commissioner that the person is 

actively engaged in the business of raising, harvesting or otherwise producing agricultural 
commodities as defined in § 67-6-301(c)(2). 

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  20



(7) "Storm water" means storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, surface runoff, street wash waters 
related to street cleaning or maintenance, infiltration (other than infiltration contaminated by seepage 
from sanitary sewers or by other discharges) and drainage; 
(8) "Storm water facilities" means the drainage structures, conduits, combined sewers, sewers, and all 
device appurtenances by means of which storm water is collected, transported, pumped, treated or 
disposed of; and 
(9) "Surface water" includes waters upon the surface of the earth in bounds created naturally or 
artificially including, but not limited to, streams, other water courses, lakes, and reservoirs. 
 
Section 68-221-1103 - Authorization of storm water facilities or flood control improvements by 
municipality 
 
The governing body of any municipality may authorize the construction, extension, enlargement, or 
acquisition of necessary storm water facilities or flood control improvements within its corporate 
boundaries. The improvements may include, but are not limited to, the extension, enlargement, 
construction, or acquisition of storm water facilities or flood control improvements; the widening, 
straightening, or relocating of streams, surface waters, or water courses; and the acquisition, extension, 
enlargement, or construction of any works necessary to regulate the quantity or quality of water for the 
protection of streams, water courses, surface waters, life, and property; provided, that the municipality 
obtains all applicable permits and complies with all applicable state and federal laws. 

Section 68-221-1105 - Municipal authority 
 
(a) In order to protect the public health, municipalities authorized to provide storm water and flood 
control facilities by this part are authorized by appropriate ordinance or resolution to: 

(1) Exercise general regulation over the planning, location, construction, and operation and 
maintenance over storm water facilities in the municipality, whether owned and operated by 
the municipality or not; 
(2) Adopt any rules and regulations deemed necessary to accomplish the purposes of this part, 
including the adoption of a system of fees for services and permits; 
(3) Establish standards to regulate the quantity of storm water discharged and to regulate storm 
water contaminants as may be necessary to protect water quality; 
(4) Review and approve plans and plats for storm water management in proposed subdivisions 
or commercial developments; 
(5) Issue permits for storm water discharges, or for the construction, alteration, extension, or 
repair of storm water facilities; 
(6) Suspend or revoke permits when it is determined that the person has violated any applicable 
ordinance, resolution, or condition of the permit; 
(7) Regulate and prohibit discharges into storm water facilities of sanitary, industrial, or 
commercial sewage or waters that have otherwise been contaminated; and 
(8) Expend funds to remediate or mitigate the detrimental effects of contaminated land or other 
sources of storm water contamination, whether public or private. 

 
(b) Municipalities may only exercise the authority granted by subsection (a) in a manner consistent with 
all requirements of state and federal law that apply to such activities. 
(c) In counties with a metropolitan form of government, the legislative body may, by ordinance, assign 
responsibility for the planning, location, construction, and operation and maintenance over storm water 
facilities in the metropolitan county to any department, board or commission. 
(d) In counties having governments other than metropolitan or consolidated governments, the county 
shall only be empowered to exercise the authority granted by this part outside the jurisdiction of an 
incorporated city or town. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  21



Sec on 68-221-1106 - Civil penalty for viola on of ordinance 

(a) A municipality may establish by ordinance or resolu on that any person who violates any ordinance 
or resolu on regula ng storm water discharges or facili es shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than fi y dollars ($50.00) or more than five thousand dollars ($5,000) per day for each day of viola ons. 
Each day of viola on may cons tute a separate viola on. A municipality shall give the violator 
reasonable no ce of the assessment of any penalty. A municipality may also recover all damages 
proximately caused to the municipality by such viola ons. 
(b) In assessing a civil penalty, the following factors may be considered: 

(1) The harm done to the public health or the environment; 
(2) Whether the civil penalty imposed will be substan al economic deterrent to the illegal 
ac vity; 
(3) The economic benefit gained by the violator; 
(4) The amount of effort put forth by the violator to remedy this viola on; 
(5) Any unusual or extraordinary enforcement costs incurred by the municipality; 
(6) The amount of penalty established by ordinance or resolu on for specific categories of 
viola ons; and 
(7) Any equi es of the situa on which outweigh the benefit of imposing any penalty or damage 
assessment. 

 
(c) The municipality may also assess damages proximately caused by the violator to the municipality 
which may include any reasonable expenses incurred in inves ga ng and enforcing viola ons of this 
part, or any other actual damages caused by the viola on. 
(d) The municipality shall establish a procedure for a review of the civil penalty or damage assessment by 
either the governing body of the municipality or by a board established to hear appeals by any person 
incurring a damage assessment or a civil penalty. If a pe on for review of such damage assessment or 
civil penalty is not filed within thirty (30) days a er the damage assessment or civil penalty is served in 
any manner authorized by law, the violator shall be deemed to have consented to the damage 
assessment or civil penalty and it shall become final. The alleged violator may appeal a decision of the 
governing body or board pursuant to tle 27, chapter 8. 
(e) Whenever any damage assessment or civil penalty has become final because of a person's failure to 
appeal the municipality's damage assessment or civil penalty, the municipality may apply to the 
appropriate chancery court for a judgment and seek execu on of such judgment. The court, in such 
proceedings, shall treat the failure to appeal such damage assessment or civil penalty as a confession of 
judgment. 

Section 68-221-1107 - Facilities user's fee 
 
(a) All municipalities constructing, operating, or maintaining storm water or flood control facilities are 
authorized to establish a graduated storm water user's fee which may be assessed and collected from 
each user of the storm water facilities provided by the municipality. These fees shall be reasonable in 
amount and used exclusively by the municipality for purposes set forth in this part. Such a graduated 
storm water user's fee shall be based on actual or estimated use of the storm water and/or flood control 
facilities of the municipality, and each user or user class shall only be required to pay its proportionate 
share of the construction, administration, operation and maintenance including replacement costs of 
such facilities based on the user's actual or estimated proportionate contribution to the total storm 
water runoff from all users or user classes. To ensure a proportionate distribution of all costs to each 
user or user class, the user's contribution shall be based on factors such as the amount of impervious 
area utilized by the user, the water quality of user's storm water runoff or the volume or rate of storm 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  22



water runoff. Persons whose storm water runoff is not discharged into or through the storm water or 
flood control facilities, or both, of the municipality; and owners and/or operators of agricultural land, in 
the municipality, upon which the owner and/or operator conducts activities that enable the owner 
and/or operator to satisfy the requirements of a qualified farmer or nurseryman shall be exempted from 
payment of the graduated storm water user fee authorized by this section. The fee structure shall 
provide adjustments for users who construct facilities to retain and control the quantity of storm water 
runoff. Prior to establishing or amending such user's fees, the municipality shall advertise its intent to do 
so by notice published in a newspaper of general circulation in such municipality at least thirty (30) days 
in advance of the meeting of the governing body which shall consider such adoption or amendment. 
(b) The municipality providing such service is authorized to enter into a contract for the collection of 
such storm water facilities fees with any public or private corporation or municipal utilities board or 
commission operating a water, gas, or electric system other than an electric cooperative incorporated 
under the Electric Cooperative Law, compiled in title 65, chapter 25, part 2, in the area of the storm 
water facilities or to make contracts with any other city, town, or utility district to bill and collect storm 
water fees as a designated item on its utility bill or, in any county which is not in the state's computer 
assisted appraisal system (CAAS), to enter into a contract or interlocal agreement with the county in 
which such municipality is located to bill and collect storm water fees for the municipality as a 
designated item on the ad valorem tax notice issued by the county trustee. In addition, if any county 
which is not in the state's CAAS constructs, operates or maintains storm water or flood control facilities 
and establishes and assesses on each user of the storm water facilities provided by the county a 
graduated storm water user's fee in accordance with this chapter, then the county trustee of such 
county is authorized to bill and collect such storm water fees for such county as a designated item on 
the ad valorem tax notice issued by the county trustee. The contract may provide for the discontinuance 
of utility service to storm water facility users who fail or refuse to pay storm water facility user charges, 
including the right not to accept payment of the utility bill from any user without receiving at the same 
time payment of any storm water facility charges owed by such user and not to re-establish utility 
services until such time as all past due storm water facility service charges owed by such user have been 
paid and/or the user of the storm water facility has performed all acts and discharged all obligations 
required by the ordinances or resolutions of the municipality. 
 
Section 68-221-1108 - Financing of facilities 
 
A municipal legislative body may finance storm water facilities under the Local Government Public 
Obligations Act of 1986, compiled in title 9, chapter 21. To protect the public health and to assure 
payment of bonds issued for storm water facilities, the municipality may by appropriate ordinance or 
resolution use the procedures set forth in §§ 68-221-208 and 68-221-209, for payment and collection of 
charges. 

Section 68-221-1110 - Permit conditions for discharges 
 
To the extent practicable, municipalities shall provide permit conditions for storm water discharges 
associated with industrial activities that are consistent with any permits issued pursuant to the National 
Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), unless the discharge contains hazardous substances in 
excess of reporting quantities, or the facility and the municipality are not in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the NPDES permits issued to them for storm water, or the discharge materially affects the 
municipal storm water facilities through either the quantity of wastewater or its contamination. 

Section 68-221-1111 - Water quality regulation authority not limited by this part 
 
Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the power or authority of the department of environment and 
conservation or of the Tennessee board of water quality, oil and gas with respect to regulation of the 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  23



waters of the state. Any ordinances or regulations adopted or imposed by municipalities shall be subject 
to regulation and oversight by the department of environment and conservation or the Tennessee board 
of water quality, oil and gas. 

Amended by 2018 Tenn. Acts, ch. 839, s 24, eff. eight (8) months immediately following the receipt of 
notification from the secretary of the interior that this state has been approved to exercise primacy over 
the regulation of surface coal mining and reclamation operations within its territorial boundaries.Acts 
1993, ch. 257, § 11. 

Section 68-221-1112 - Notice of federally mandated charges 
 
Any bill rendered as a result of this part shall contain the following statement with respect to the 
charges assessed under this part, which statement shall be printed in bold-faced type: 

"THIS FEE HAS BEEN MANDATED BY CONGRESS." 

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  24



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  25



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1-2024 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORRIS AND ELIZABETH 
COCHRAN FOR STAGE MANAGER OF NORRIS LITTLE THEATRE 75TH ANNIVERSARY THEATRE 

PRODUCTION 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norris created the Norris Little Theatre for the purpose of conducting 
public theatre events, and; 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Norris Little Theatre the City retain the services of Elizabeth to 
serve as stage manager for a play as described within the agreement, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Norris desires to enter into a contract with Elizabeth 
Cochran to complete said work, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, the Council of the City of Norris shall enter into a Contract with Elizabeth Cochran, 
attached hereto, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute said Contract on behalf of the 
City. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all resolutions and partial resolutions in conflict 
herewith would be and that the same hereby are repealed or modified as the case may be. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect from and after its 
adoption, welfare demanding it. 

 Passed and approved this 11th day of March, 2024. 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 
Attest 
_____________________________________ 
City Recorder 
 
I, Sandy Johnson, City Recorder for the City of Norris, Tennessee, certify that the above 
resolution is part of the minutes of March 11, 2024 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       City Recorder 
 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  26



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  27



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  28



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  29



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  30



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2-2024 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR THE 

NORRIS AREA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 2024 GRANT 
 
WHEREAS, the Norris Area Community Foundation is accepting applications for their 2024 grant 
cycle with stated priorities including “support for seniors”; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Norris City Council to provide recreational opportunities 
accessible to all members of the community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Norris, Tennessee, as 
follows:   
  
Section 1.  That the Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to submit an application for 
the Norris Area Community Foundation 2024 Grant to fund a recreational project catering to all 
members of the community, especially seniors. 
  
Section 2.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such conflict. 

 
Passed and approved this 11th day of March 2024. 
 

       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 
Attest 
_____________________________________ 
City Recorder 
 
I, Sandy Johnson, City Recorder for the City of Norris, Tennessee, certify that the above 
resolution is part of the minutes of March 11, 2024. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       City Recorder 
 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  31



 
RESOLUTION NO. 3-2024 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ESTABLISH A POLICY WITH THE CLINTON 

UTILITIES BOARD TO REQUIRE THE CITY’S APPROVAL PRIOR TO UTILITY SERVICE ACTIVATION 
 
WHEREAS, the Clinton Utilities Board (CUB) currently services electricity within the City of 
Norris; and 
 
WHEREAS, other governmental jurisdictions serviced by CUB require a release to be submitted 
by the governmental entity prior to utility service activation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Norris City Council wishes to ensure that all building and zoning codes are being 
properly enforced.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Norris, Tennessee, as 
follows:   
  
Section 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to establish a policy with the Clinton 
Utilities Board which would require the city’s release prior to service activation within the 
Norris city limits. 
  
Section 2.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such conflict. 

 
Passed and approved this 11th day of March 2024. 
 

       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 
Attest 
_____________________________________ 
City Recorder 
 
I, Sandy Johnson, City Recorder for the City of Norris, Tennessee, certify that the above 
resolution is part of the minutes of March 11, 2024. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       City Recorder 
 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  32



ORDINANCE NUMBER 673 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORRIS, TENNESSEE, AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2024 
            
WHEREAS, the budget process is one of the most important activities undertaken by 

governments for the public welfare with the budget process being used to make 
program services and capital decisions and allocate scare resources to programs, 
services, and capital; and 

 
WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated § 6-56-208 allows the governing body to amend the 

annual budget ordinance in the same manner as any other ordinance may be; and 
          

WHEREAS,  the Municipal Budget Law of 1982 requires that the governing body of each 
municipality adopt and operate under an annual budget ordinance presenting a 
financial plan with at least the information required by that state statute, that no 
municipality may expend any moneys regardless of the source except in 
accordance with a budget ordinance and that the governing body shall not make 
any appropriation in excess of estimated available funds; and   
     

          
WHEREAS,  the budget ordinance is the legal document whereby the governing body 

appropriates funds and thereby gives the legal authority for expenditures of the 
City as required by state law.      

          
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORRIS, TENNESSEE THAT 
THE FOLLOWING AMENDENTS ARE MADE TO THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2024: 
          
SECTION 1: Ordinance 648 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

General Fund Description  Increase/(Decrease)  
Revenue 
110-37199 (Gen Rev) Misc. Revenue  $25,000 
Total Revenue    $25,000 
      
Expenditures 
45160-329 (Animal Shelter) Op Supplies  $2,500 
42000-112 (Police) Overtime   $16,000 
41800-260 (Com BLDG) Repair & Maintenance  $15,000 
41000-253 (Gen Gov) Accounting   $1,000 
41000-250 (Gen Gov) Prof Services  $3,000 
41900-260 (McNeeley BLDG) Repair & Maint.  $12,000   
43000-940 (Public Works) Capital Outlay    $27,000 
Total Expenditures    $76,500  

  

Water Works Fund Description  Increase/(Decrease)  
Expenditures      
52213-934 (WW Treatment) Drainage & Sewage  $15,000 
52317-510 (General Admin) Liability Ins  $7,900 
52317-250 (General Admin) Prof Services  $4,100 
52317-900 (General Admin) Capital Outlay  $27,000 
Total Expenditures    $54,000  

  

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  33



Watershed Fund Description  Increase/(Decrease)  
Revenue 
123-36690 (Watershed) Wood Permits  $42,000 
123-36693 (Watershed) Rifle Range Permits  $5,000 
Total Revenue    $47,000 
      
Expenditures      
45100-900 (Watershed) Capital Outlay  $27,000 
Total Expenditures    $27,000   

 
Solid Waste Fund Description  Increase/(Decrease)  
Expenditures      
43230-249 (Solid Waste) Refuse   $9,000 
Total Expenditures    $9,000    

 
Street Aid Fund Description  Increase/(Decrease)  
Revenue      
121-36100 (Street Aid) Interest   $5,250 
Total Revenue    $5,250 

 
SECTION 2: The City Council of the City of Norris authorizes the City Recorder to make said 

changes in the account system. 
 
SECTION 3:    Severability.  Each section, paragraph, sentence, and clause of this ordinance is 

declared to be separate and severable.  The invalidity of any section, subsection, 
paragraph, sentence, or clause shall not affect the validity of any other provision 
of the ordinance. 

 
SECTION 4:    Repealer.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances which are inconsistent with any 

provision of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
inconsistency. 

 
SECTION 5:    Effective.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

approval as required by law. 
 
 

First Reading:  ________________________   
 
Public Hearing:  ________________________   

   
Second Reading: ________________________  

  
 

__________________________________ 
Signed, Mayor 
 
__________________________________ 
Attest, City Manager 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  34



CONSULTING CONTRACT 

between 

Community Development Partners, LLC 

and 

City of Norris, Tennessee 

 

THIS CONSULTING CONTRACT, effective on this the 22nd day of February, 2024 by 
and between COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS, LLC (“CONSULTANT”) and 
the City of Norris, TENNESSEE (“CLIENT”). This Contract pertains to the TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION AMERICAN RESCUE 
PLAN ACT COMPETITIVE FUNDING (TDEC-ARPA). 

Whereas the CLIENT desires to engage the CONSULTANT to render professional 
administrative consulting services (professional services) and to advise the CLIENT on 
the CLIENT’S compliance with funding allocated under the Coronavirus State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery Fund (SLFRF) of the Tennessee Department of Environment and 
Conservation American Rescue Plan Act Competitive Round; and the CONSULTANT 
agrees to provide such professional advice to the CLIENT. Therefore, the CLIENT and 
the CONSULTANT do mutually agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I – SCOPE of SERVICES for ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTING 
ASSISTANCE 

The CONSULTANT shall provide professional administrative services to the CLIENT, to 
assist the Client in complying with the ARPA, including, but not limited to, the activities 
described in Attachment A. 

ARTICLE II – TIME for PERFORMANCE 

The services to be provided shall commence upon execution of this Contract by both 
parties and will remain in effect until completion and closeout of TDEC-ARPA activities 
unless earlier terminated in writing by either party pursuant to Article V(a) or (b). 

ARTICLE III – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

a. Personnel:  The CONSULTANT warrants that it has the professional personnel 
capable of performing the services as called for herein, in a satisfactory and proper 
manner, or will secure the services of such personnel as may be required to 
perform these services. 

b. Subcontracting:  No work or services covered by this Contract shall be subcon-
tracted without the prior consent of the CLIENT. Any work or services subcon-
tracted hereunder shall be specified by written agreement and shall be subject to 
each provision of this Contract. 

c. Access to Materials:  The CLIENT agrees to make available to the 
CONSULTANT any documents, planning materials, or any other information in its 
possession or otherwise readily available which has a bearing on the TDEC-ARPA 
funding for the CLIENT, at no expense to the CONSULTANT.  

ARTICLE IV – COMPENSATION and METHOD of PAYMENT 

For services rendered under this Contract, the CLIENT  agrees to pay the 
CONSULTANT for all costs, both direct and indirect, attributable to the services rendered 
(as described in ARTICLE I of this Contract). Such payment shall be due upon the 
presentation of periodic invoices certifying such amounts are due and payable. The total 
amount to be paid under this section for services and costs shall be One Hundred Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($150,000). 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  35



ARTICLE V – TERMS and CONDITIONS 

a. Termination of Contract for Cause/Breach of Contract:  If either party fails to 
fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this Contract, or if a party 
breaches any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Contract, the 
non-breaching party shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Contract only 
if such breach is not cured within ten (10) days from receipt of written notice from 
the non-breaching party to the breaching party of such breach.  In such an event, 
all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, 
models, photographs, and reports or other materials prepared by the 
CONSULTANT under this Contract shall, at the option of the CLIENT, become the 
CLIENT’s property, and the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to receive 
compensation for any work completed on such documents or material or otherwise 
through the date of termination.   

b. Termination for Convenience: The CLIENT or CONSULTANT may terminate this 
Contract at any time by giving written notice of such termination and specifying the 
effective date thereof at least fifteen (15) days prior to the effective date of such 
termination. In such case, all finished or unfinished documents and other materials 
as described in the above clause, shall, at the discretion of the CLIENT, become 
CLIENT’S property. 
 

If the Contract is terminated by the CLIENT as provided herein, the CONSULTANT 
shall be entitled to receive compensation for any work completed on such 
documents and materials or otherwise through the date of termination. The 
CONSULTANT shall also be reimbursed (in addition to the above payment) for that 
portion of the actual out-of-pocket expenses not otherwise reimbursed under this 
Contract, that have been incurred by the CONSULTANT during the Contract period 
and are directly attributable to the uncompleted portion of the services covered by 
this Contract. 

c. Changes:  The CLIENT may periodically request changes of the 
CONSULTANT in the Scope of Services to be performed hereunder. Such 
changes, or renegotiation, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 
CONSULTANT's compensation mutually agreed upon by and between the 
CLIENT and the CONSULTANT, shall be incorporated in written Amendments to 
this Contract. The Contract can be extended under mutually agreed provisions 
through a written Amendment to this document. 

d. Assignability:  The CONSULTANT shall not assign any interest on this Contract 
and shall not transfer any interest in the same without the prior written consent of 
the CLIENT, provided, however, that claims for money by the CONSULTANT from 
the CLIENT under this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or 
other financial institution without such approval. Written notice of any such 
assignment or transfer shall be promptly furnished to the CLIENT. 

e. Confidentiality:  All of the reports, information, data, etc., given to, prepared, or 
assembled by the CONSULTANT under this Contract are confidential, and the 
CONSULTANT agrees that they shall not be made available to any individual or 
organization without the prior written approval of the CLIENT, subject to applicable 
legal requirements.  ` 

f. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material:  No material produced in whole 
or in part under this Contract shall be subject to copyright by or on behalf of the 
CONSULTANT in the United States or in any other country. The CLIENT shall 
have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and otherwise use, in 
whole or in part, any reports, data, or other materials prepared under this Contract. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  36



ARTICLE VI – COMPLIANCE with APPLICABLE LAWS and REGULATIONS 

a. Regulations:  The CONSULTANT shall comply with applicable laws, regulations, 
ordinances, executive orders, and codes of the United States Government, the 
State of Tennessee, and local government(s) with respect to the CONSULTANT’s 
engagement as a consultant to the CLIENT hereunder, including those cited in this 
Article VI. Without limiting the foregoing, this is an acknowledgement that Treasury 
ARP SLFRF financial assistance will be used to fund all or a portion of this 
Contract, and the CONSULTANT will comply with applicable Treasury policies, 
procedures, and directives. 

b. Audits and Inspection/Access to Records/Record Retention:   

 (1)  At any time during normal business hours, the CONSULTANT agrees 
to provide CLIENT, Treasury, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any 
of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and 
records of the CONSULTANT which are directly pertinent to this Contract for the 
purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 
 
 (2) The CONSULTANT agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to 
reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as 
reasonably needed. 

 (3)  The CONSULTANT shall retain all such documents, papers and records 
which are directly pertinent to this Contract for the longer period of either five (5) 
years following completion of the contracted work and expiration of the Contract or 
the federally required retention period. 

c. Title VI Civil Rights Act of 1964:  Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
no person shall, on the grounds of race, color or national origin, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under 
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 

The CONSULTANT shall be in compliance with the CLIENT’s Title VI policy of non-
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, sex, or disability in 
its hiring and employment practices, or in admission to, access to, or operation of 
its programs, services, or activities. 

d. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 
3601 et seq.):  This act prohibits discrimination in housing based on race, color, 
religion, national origin, sex, familial status, or disability. 

e. Interest of Members of the CLIENT and Other Local Public Officials:  No 
officer, member, or employee of the CLIENT; no member of the local governing 
body; and no other public official of the governing body of the locality or localities 
in which the project is situated or being carried out, who exercises any functions 
or responsibilities in the review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of 
this project, shall participate in any decision relating to this Contract which affects 
his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association 
in which he is directly or indirectly interested or has any personal or pecuniary 
interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. The CLIENT 
shall take appropriate steps to assure compliance. 

f. Interest of the CONSULTANT:  The CONSULTANT covenants that it presently 
has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would 
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be 
performed under this Contract. The CONSULTANT further covenants that in the 
performance of this Contract, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

g. Officials Not to Benefit:  No members of or delegate to the Congress of the United 
States of America, and no Resident Commissioner, shall be admitted to any share 
or part hereof, or to any benefit to arise here from. 

h. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended:   
The CONSULTANT will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of physical or mental handicap regarding any position for 
which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The CONSULTANT 
agrees to take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and otherwise 
treat qualified handicapped individuals without discrimination based upon their 
physical or mental handicap in all employment practices such as the following:  

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  37



employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or 
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship. The CONSULTANT agrees to comply with the rules, 
regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant 
to this Act. 

i. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended:  This act 
prohibits discrimination based on disability under programs, activities, and services 
provided or made available by state and local governments, instrumentalities, or 
agencies thereto. 

j. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Applicable to Contracts of $2,000 or greater):  
No persons in the United States, based on age, shall be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination in 
receiving Federal financial assistance. 

k. False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C § 38: The CONSULTANT acknowledges that 31 
U.S.C. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to 
the CONSULTANT’S actions pertaining to this Contract. 
 

l. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352: Contractors who apply or 
bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier 
certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated 
funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence 
an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 
obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 
1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes 
place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are 
forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the 
certification(s) to the awarding agency. 
 

m. Suspension and Debarment: 
 
 (1) This Contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 
and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the CONSULTANT is required to verify that none 
of the CONSULTANT’S principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates 
(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or 
disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).  
  
 (2) The CONSULTANT must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 
C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must include a requirement to comply with these 
regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 
 
 (3) This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by the 
CLIENT. If it is later determined that the CONSULTANT did not comply with 2 
C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies 
available to the CLIENT, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, 
including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 
 
 (4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 
C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid 
and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder 
or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its 
lower tier covered transactions. 

ARTICLE VII – ADDITIONAL SERVICES OF CONSULTANT 

If authorized in writing by the CLIENT, the CONSULTANT shall furnish additional services 
which are not part of the services described in Attachment A. Under this Contract, all fees 
and costs for additional services will be negotiated as to activities and compensation. 
Upon mutual agreement between the CLIENT and the CONSULTANT, and written 
authorization from the CLIENT to proceed, the CONSULTANT will provide the additional 
service(s). 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  38



ARTICLE VIII – INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

CONSULTANT is an independent contractor of the CLIENT, and this Contract shall not be 
construed to create any associate, partnership, joint venture, employment, or agency 
relationship between the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT for any purpose. The 
CONSULTANT shall have no authority (and shall not hold itself out as having authority) to 
bind the CLIENT.  

ARTICLE IX – MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION 

 To the extent permitted by applicable law, each party (as “Indemnifying Party”) shall 
indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the other party and its officers, directors, employees, 
agents, affiliates, and assigns (collectively, “Indemnified Party”) against any and all losses, 
damages, liabilities, claims, actions, judgments, penalties, fines, costs, or expenses of 
whatever kind, including professional fees and attorneys’ fees, that are incurred by 
Indemnified Party arising out of any breach of any representation, warranty, or covenant 
made under this Agreement by Indemnifying Party.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CLIENT and the CONSULTANT have caused this Contract 
to be executed by their duly authorized officers and effective on this date first above written. 

City of Norris 

Mayor   Date 

Attest: 

Community Development Partners, LLC 

President         Date 

Attest: 

2/22/2024

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  39



ATTACHMENT A 

DETAIL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTING SERVICES 

Name of project:  The City of Norris Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery 
Fund (SLFRF) of the American Rescue Plan Act (Competitive TDEC-ARPA). 

Name of person or company providing services:  
Community Development Partners, LLC. 

 

 TASKS AMOUNT 

1  Planning $22,500.00   

 A. Coordinate TDEC planning process  

 B. Collect, assemble, and submit application(s) and 
funding packages 

 

2  Project Files/General Management $16,500.00 

 A. Create, complete, and maintain filing system of 
documentation and data for use of funds 

 

 B. Periodic maintenance/updates  

3  Reporting and Monitoring $18,000.00 

 A. Prepare and coordinate with the City’s staff to submit 
Performance and Financial Reports as required 

 

 B. Prepare and coordinate with the City’s staff to submit 
spending plans where required  

 

 C. Provide periodic status report regarding use and status 
of funds 

 

 D. Maintain electronic and other communications with 
local, state, and federal entities 

 

4  Equal Opportunity/Title VI $7,500.00   

 A. Advise on Title IV compliance  

 B. DBE Solicitation for competitive bid  

 C. On-site poster documentation  

   
  

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  40



 TASKS AMOUNT 

5  Project Management $45,000.00 

 A. Review sub-recipient, contractor, and eligibility, 
including suspension and debarment monitoring 

 

 B. Coordinate with the City’s staff, technical 
consultants/engineers to formulate and review front-end 
bid manual 

 

 C. Review contracts, requests for payments and other 
purchasing documents 

 

 D. Collect, evaluate, and manage programmatic 
documents and data for each project   

 

 E. For any construction project, assist in establishing 
applicable labor standards, contractor reporting 
requirements, and monitor contractors when applicable  
(does not include inspection services) 

 

6  Financial Management $37,500.00 

 A. Develop/create tracking system  

 B. Work with the City’s staff to track TDEC-ARPA funds  

 C. Coordinate payment set up   

 D. Work with the City’s staff to review payment request   

 E. Periodic monitoring of expenditures  

7  Audit and Closeout $3,000.00 

 A. Work with the City’s staff to prepare for single audits of 
expenditures and work with the City’s auditors as 
needed 

 

 B. Final Closeout/Performance Reports  

   

 GRAND TOTAL $150,000.00 
 

The proposed amount identifies and includes all professional administrative services, 
expected costs, and expenditures that are deemed necessary to carry out those activities. 
Periodic invoices shall be submitted on a monthly basis. The cumulative amount invoiced 
shall not exceed the maximum limit established in this agreement unless otherwise 
amended. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  41



2/22/2024

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  42



2/22/2024

Norris

Norris
Norris

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  43



2/22/2024

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  44



X

X

X

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  45



Evan Sanders, President (615) 386-0222  esanders@cdpllc.com

2/22/2024

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  46



 
RESOLUTION NO. 4-2024 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORRIS AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS, LLC FOR ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTING ASSISTANCE OF THE 
CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND (SLFRF) OF THE TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 

COMPETITIVE PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norris has been notified by the Tennessee Department of Environment 
and Conservation of their award to study and design a regional solution to sanitary sewer; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Norris City Council wishes to contract for administrative consulting assistance 
related to potential sewer treatment regionalization and the study therein associated.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Norris, Tennessee, as 
follows:   
  
Section 1.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the attached agreement with 
Community Development Partners, LLC for administrative consulting services associated with 
the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund (SLFRF) of the Tennessee Department of 
Environment and Conservation American Rescue Plan Act Competitive Project. 
  
Section 2.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such conflict. 

 
Passed and approved this 11th day of March 2024. 
 

       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 
Attest 
_____________________________________ 
City Recorder 
 
I, Sandy Johnson, City Recorder for the City of Norris, Tennessee, certify that the above 
resolution is part of the minutes of March 11, 2024. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       City Recorder 
 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  47



110Fund : General Fund

% UnRealizedTotal Estimated YTD Realized UnrealizedMTD Realized

66.67%Monthly Comparative

703,000.00 (751,095.81) (48,095.81) -6.84%31111 Real Property Taxes (Current) (6,129.00)

73,000.00 (7,159.36) 65,840.64 90.19%31112 Personal Property Taxes (Current) 0.00

6,800.00 (1,732.00) 5,068.00 74.53%31120 Public Utilities Property Tax (Current) (1,732.00)

10,000.00 (19,916.18) (9,916.18) -99.16%31200 Property Taxes (Delinquent) 0.00

1,800.00 (2,992.30) (1,192.30) -66.24%31300 Int, Penalty, And Court Cost On Prop Tax (689.94)

18,000.00 (8,264.74) 9,735.26 54.08%31511 Pay In Lieu Of Tax -Electric Utilities (1,033.10)

262,000.00 (189,281.15) 72,718.85 27.76%31600 Local Option Sales Tax (25,632.59)

61,500.00 (25,145.05) 36,354.95 59.11%31710 Wholesale Beer Tax (97.07)

44,000.00 (28,188.43) 15,811.57 35.94%31720 Wholesale Liquor Tax (2,486.09)

2,700.00 (6,799.41) (4,099.41) -151.83%31730 Mixed Drink Tax (878.50)

14,000.00 (4,861.47) 9,138.53 65.28%31800 Business Taxes (1,064.53)

22,000.00 0.00 22,000.00 100.00%31912 Cable TV Franchise Tax 0.00

1,200.00 (400.00) 800.00 66.67%32210 Beer Licenses 0.00

1,000.00 (459.00) 541.00 54.10%32410 Animal Registration (50.00)

12,415.00 (10,043.50) 2,371.50 19.10%32600 Building And Related Permits (2,392.00)

5,600.00 (39,833.32) (34,233.32) -611.31%33400 Police Supplements - State Grant (4,800.00)

122,000.00 0.00 122,000.00 100.00%33430 T Dot Enhancement Grant 0.00

5,400.00 0.00 5,400.00 100.00%33480 Local Planning Grant 0.00

190,000.00 (133,883.99) 56,116.01 29.53%33510 State Sales Tax (21,705.95)

10,500.00 0.00 10,500.00 100.00%33520 State Income Tax 0.00

736.00 0.00 736.00 100.00%33530 State Beer Tax 0.00

3,234.00 (1,952.88) 1,281.12 39.61%33552 State-City Streets And Transportation (244.11)

4,550.00 0.00 4,550.00 100.00%33590 Bank Excise Tax 0.00

19,000.00 (9,797.94) 9,202.06 48.43%33591 Gross Receipts - Tva 0.00

1,500.00 (2,125.59) (625.59) -41.71%33592 Sports Betting - State Shared Tax (930.42)

1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%33730 Tenn Safety Grant 0.00

0.00 (50,000.00) (50,000.00) No Budget33800 Local Agency Project 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 No Budget33801 ARPA Funds 0.00

50.00 0.00 50.00 100.00%34111 Duplicating Services 0.00

88,275.00 (55,474.87) 32,800.13 37.16%34131 Administrative Services 0.00

3,000.00 (993.75) 2,006.25 66.88%35110 City Court Fines And Costs 0.00

Statement of Revenues - City
Bailey Whited

3/7/2024 8:39 AM
City of Norris

February 2024 Page 1 of 6

Template Name:
Created by:

User:
Date/Time:

LGC Statement of Revenues -
LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  48



110Fund : General Fund

% UnRealizedTotal Estimated YTD Realized UnrealizedMTD Realized

66.67%Monthly Comparative

300.00 (462.65) (162.65) -54.22%35140 Drug Related Fines 0.00

200.00 (120.65) 79.35 39.68%35160 Court Fines And Costs From County Courts (25.65)

38,000.00 (33,752.92) 4,247.08 11.18%36100 Interest Earnings 0.00

400.00 (1,685.00) (1,285.00) -321.25%36211 Community Building Rental (505.00)

29,000.00 (26,625.12) 2,374.88 8.19%36212 Tower Rent (3,855.72)

600.00 (420.00) 180.00 30.00%36213 Pavilion Rental 0.00

1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00 0.00%36420 Osm Parking Contract 0.00

3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00%36550 Tree Commission 0.00

6,500.00 (6,433.35) 66.65 1.03%36700 Animal Shelter Contri And Donations (390.00)

2,500.00 (896.82) 1,603.18 64.13%36710 Recreation Comm. Donations (374.82)

5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00 100.00%36710 Contri And Donations-BusinessesCDB 0.00

650.00 0.00 650.00 100.00%36721 Contri And Donations-Organizations No.-1 0.00

5,000.00 (50.00) 4,950.00 99.00%36730 Norris Recreation Comms. Donations 0.00

1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.00%36732 Trail Benches 0.00

3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00%36735 Norris Little Theatre Donations 0.00

20,000.00 (700.00) 19,300.00 96.50%36738 Norris Vol. Fire Dept. Donations (200.00)

45,290.00 0.00 45,290.00 100.00%36960 Operating Transfer In From Other Funds 0.00

1,000.00 (173.27) 826.73 82.67%36990 Miscellameous Refunds 0.00

20,000.00 (60,027.61) (40,027.61) -200.14%37199 Miscellaneous (27,714.32)

Total For Fund: 110 1,871,700.00 388,951.87(1,482,748.13) 20.78 %(102,930.81)

Statement of Revenues - City
Bailey Whited

3/7/2024 8:39 AM
City of Norris

February 2024 Page 2 of 6

Template Name:
Created by:

User:
Date/Time:

LGC Statement of Revenues -
LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  49



121Fund : State Street Aid Fund

% UnRealizedTotal Estimated YTD Realized UnrealizedMTD Realized

66.67%Monthly Comparative

55,900.00 (38,506.84) 17,393.16 31.11%33551 State Gasoline And Motor Fuel Tax (4,767.73)

0.00 (3,744.11) (3,744.11) No Budget36100 Interest Earnings 0.00

Total For Fund: 121 55,900.00 13,649.05(42,250.95) 24.42 %(4,767.73)

Statement of Revenues - City
Bailey Whited

3/7/2024 8:39 AM
City of Norris

February 2024 Page 3 of 6

Template Name:
Created by:

User:
Date/Time:

LGC Statement of Revenues -
LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  50



123Fund : Watershed Fund

% UnRealizedTotal Estimated YTD Realized UnrealizedMTD Realized

66.67%Monthly Comparative

0.00 (4,970.96) (4,970.96) No Budget36100 Interest Earnings 0.00

28,000.00 (26,625.27) 1,374.73 4.91%36212 Tower Rent (3,855.76)

20.00 0.00 20.00 100.00%36690 Wood Permits 0.00

3,800.00 (3,500.00) 300.00 7.89%36691 Hunting Permits 0.00

59,000.00 (58,776.00) 224.00 0.38%36693 Rifle Range Permits (3,925.00)

1,000.00 (2,740.00) (1,740.00) -174.00%37199 Miscellaneous 0.00

Total For Fund: 123 91,820.00 (4,792.23)(96,612.23) -5.22 %(7,780.76)

Statement of Revenues - City
Bailey Whited

3/7/2024 8:39 AM
City of Norris

February 2024 Page 4 of 6

Template Name:
Created by:

User:
Date/Time:

LGC Statement of Revenues -
LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  51



128Fund : Refuse/Recycle Fund

% UnRealizedTotal Estimated YTD Realized UnrealizedMTD Realized

66.67%Monthly Comparative

28,620.00 (19,863.65) 8,756.35 30.60%34410 Refuse Collection Charges (2,259.50)

128,952.00 (73,276.00) 55,676.00 43.18%34430 Refuse Collection And Disposal Charges 0.00

Total For Fund: 128 157,572.00 64,432.35(93,139.65) 40.89 %(2,259.50)

Statement of Revenues - City
Bailey Whited

3/7/2024 8:39 AM
City of Norris

February 2024 Page 5 of 6

Template Name:
Created by:

User:
Date/Time:

LGC Statement of Revenues -
LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  52



413Fund : Water And Sewer

% UnRealizedTotal Estimated YTD Realized UnrealizedMTD Realized

66.67%Monthly Comparative

815,140.00 0.00 815,140.00 100.00%33100 Federal Grants 0.00

3.00 (16,007.20) (16,004.20) -533473.33%36100 Interest Earnings 0.00

525,000.00 (377,024.19) 147,975.81 28.19%37110 Metered Water Sales (46,947.86)

4,000.00 (2,462.88) 1,537.12 38.43%37120 Flat Rate Water Sales To Gen Customers (307.86)

12,200.00 0.00 12,200.00 100.00%37130 Fire Service And Hydrant Rentals 0.00

13,000.00 0.00 13,000.00 100.00%37191 Forfeited Discounts And Penalties 0.00

4,800.00 (2,825.00) 1,975.00 41.15%37195 Installation Charges (425.00)

1,100.00 0.00 1,100.00 100.00%37196 Water Tap Fees 0.00

2,000.00 (7,073.96) (5,073.96) -253.70%37199 Miscellaneous 0.00

510,000.00 (350,603.80) 159,396.20 31.25%37210 Sewer Service Charges (43,778.62)

550.00 0.00 550.00 100.00%37220 Sewer Inspection Fees 0.00

150.00 0.00 150.00 100.00%37290 Other Operating Rev-Sewer Stoppages 0.00

0.00 (2,006.03) (2,006.03) No Budget37293 Sale Of Parts (1,738.43)

500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00%37299 Miscellaneous 0.00

11,000.00 (5,500.00) 5,500.00 50.00%37990 Other Revenue 0.00

Total For Fund: 413 1,899,443.00 1,135,939.94(763,503.06) 59.80 %(93,197.77)

Statement of Revenues - City
Bailey Whited

3/7/2024 8:39 AM
City of Norris

February 2024 Page 6 of 6

Template Name:
Created by:

User:
Date/Time:

LGC Statement of Revenues -
LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  53



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

41000 General Government

110

Personnel

(268,421.00)

0.00

(268,421.00) 195,071.83

0.00

(73,349.17) 72.67% 21,387.23

0.00

114

Part-Time Personnel

(28,860.00)

0.00

(28,860.00) 15,654.70

0.00

(13,205.30) 54.24% 867.00

0.00

134

Christmas Bonus

(541.00)

0.00

(541.00) 2,641.40

0.00

2,100.40 488.24% 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(22,783.00)

0.00

(22,783.00) 16,117.51

0.00

(6,665.49) 70.74% 1,677.52

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

(50,841.00)

0.00

(50,841.00) 51,296.34

0.00

455.34 100.90% 6,254.88

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

(11,154.00)

0.00

(11,154.00) 9,080.94

0.00

(2,073.06) 81.41% 1,020.25

0.00

146

Workmen's Compensation

(1,200.00)

0.00

(1,200.00) 991.67

0.00

(208.33) 82.64% 0.00

0.00

147

Unemployment Insurance

(350.00)

0.00

(350.00) 98.23

0.00

(251.77) 28.07% 10.98

0.00

148

Employee Education And Training

(1,500.00)

0.00

(1,500.00) 2,968.73

0.00

1,468.73 197.92% 0.00

0.00

211

Postage, Box Rent, Etc.

(1,400.00)

0.00

(1,400.00) 794.63

0.00

(605.37) 56.76% 0.00

0.00

223

Publications, Reports, Etc.

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 35.00

0.00

(465.00) 7.00% 0.00

0.00

224

Duplication (Mimeograph, Multilith, Microfilm,

(3,600.00)

0.00

(3,600.00) 2,382.22

0.00

(1,217.78) 66.17% 268.83

0.00

235

Memberships, Registration Fees, And Tuition

(4,000.00)

0.00

(4,000.00) 3,991.60

0.00

(8.40) 99.79% 0.00

0.00

237

Advertising

(2,000.00)

0.00

(2,000.00) 556.64

0.00

(1,443.36) 27.83% 0.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 1 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  54



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

250

Professional Services

(11,000.00)

0.00

(11,000.00) 13,904.26

0.00

2,904.26 126.40% 0.00

0.00

252

Legal Services

(7,000.00)

0.00

(7,000.00) 74,131.68

0.00

67,131.68 1059.02% 3,541.50

0.00

253

Accounting And Auditing Services

(13,000.00)

0.00

(13,000.00) 13,782.15

0.00

782.15 106.02% 3,247.15

0.00

255

Data Processing Services

(16,000.00)

0.00

(16,000.00) 12,021.05

0.00

(3,978.95) 75.13% 463.55

0.00

259

Other Professional Services

(7,000.00)

0.00

(7,000.00) 1,958.49

0.00

(5,041.51) 27.98% 457.61

0.00

280

Travel

(4,500.00)

0.00

(4,500.00) 1,943.99

0.00

(2,556.01) 43.20% 0.00

0.00

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(300.00)

0.00

(300.00) 0.00

0.00

(300.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

310

Office Supplies And Materials

(2,800.00)

0.00

(2,800.00) 5,662.73

0.00

2,862.73 202.24% 242.64

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 4,298.13

0.00

3,798.13 859.63% 205.63

0.00

510

Liability Insurance

(36,100.00)

0.00

(36,100.00) 37,648.00

0.00

1,548.00 104.29% 0.00

0.00

551

Trustee Fees

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 1,052.00

0.00

552.00 210.40% 0.00

0.00

555

Bank Service Charges

(1,600.00)

0.00

(1,600.00) 2,180.38

0.00

580.38 136.27% 0.00

0.00

948

Computer Equipment

(8,000.00)

0.00

(8,000.00) 331.25

0.00

(7,668.75) 4.14% 0.00

0.00

41800 Community Government Buildings

241

Electric

(9,500.00)

0.00

(9,500.00) 5,197.93

0.00

(4,302.07) 54.72% 994.68

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 2 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  55



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

242

Water

(3,000.00)

0.00

(3,000.00) 2,011.28

0.00

(988.72) 67.04% 246.10

0.00

244

Gas

(1,200.00)

0.00

(1,200.00) 544.79

0.00

(655.21) 45.40% 268.25

0.00

245

Telephone And Other Communications

(7,200.00)

0.00

(7,200.00) 5,404.01

0.00

(1,795.99) 75.06% 711.46

0.00

260

Repair And Maintenance Services

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 18,620.09

0.00

13,620.09 372.40% 2,270.94

0.00

290

Other Contractural Services

(1,400.00)

0.00

(1,400.00) 2,470.06

0.00

1,070.06 176.43% 78.00

0.00

900

Capital Outlay

(150,000.00)

0.00

(150,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(150,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

41900 Mcneeley Municipal Building

241

Electric

(5,500.00)

0.00

(5,500.00) 2,687.49

0.00

(2,812.51) 48.86% 964.95

0.00

242

Water

(1,600.00)

0.00

(1,600.00) 1,150.76

0.00

(449.24) 71.92% 81.97

0.00

260

Repair And Maintenance Services

(1,600.00)

0.00

(1,600.00) 11,419.73

0.00

9,819.73 713.73% 1,116.56

0.00

290

Other Contractural Services

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 675.64

0.00

(324.36) 67.56% 78.00

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

(100.00)

0.00

(100.00) 0.00

0.00

(100.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

900

Capital Outlay

(40,000.00)

0.00

(40,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(40,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

42000 Police Dept.

110

Personnel

(349,752.00)

0.00

(349,752.00) 255,462.52

0.00

(94,289.48) 73.04% 32,575.66

0.00

112

Over-Time Personnel

(30,000.00)

0.00

(30,000.00) 40,872.86

0.00

10,872.86 136.24% 2,489.84

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 3 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  56



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

114

Part-Time Personnel

(10,000.00)

0.00

(10,000.00) 10,418.59

0.00

418.59 104.19% 1,112.80

0.00

119

Health Insurance Incentive

(2,500.00)

0.00

(2,500.00) 1,250.00

0.00

(1,250.00) 50.00% 0.00

0.00

129

Holiday Pay

(19,500.00)

0.00

(19,500.00) 23,193.58

0.00

3,693.58 118.94% 1,539.31

0.00

132

State Bonus

(5,600.00)

0.00

(5,600.00) 4,000.00

0.00

(1,600.00) 71.43% 4,000.00

0.00

134

Christmas Bonus

(10,050.00)

0.00

(10,050.00) 10,582.80

0.00

532.80 105.30% 800.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(32,696.00)

0.00

(32,696.00) 26,259.55

0.00

(6,436.45) 80.31% 3,226.91

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

(88,297.00)

0.00

(88,297.00) 58,192.15

0.00

(30,104.85) 65.91% 6,488.82

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

(25,044.00)

0.00

(25,044.00) 16,398.39

0.00

(8,645.61) 65.48% 2,201.26

0.00

146

Workmen's Compensation

(14,000.00)

0.00

(14,000.00) 11,569.37

0.00

(2,430.63) 82.64% 0.00

0.00

147

Unemployment Insurance

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 177.71

0.00

(322.29) 35.54% 20.92

0.00

148

Employee Education And Training

(3,500.00)

0.00

(3,500.00) 3,014.66

0.00

(485.34) 86.13% 0.00

0.00

211

Postage, Box Rent, Etc.

(200.00)

0.00

(200.00) 0.00

0.00

(200.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

216

Radio And Tv Services

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 77.13

0.00

(422.87) 15.43% 0.00

0.00

220

Printing, Duplicating, Typing, And Binding

(800.00)

0.00

(800.00) 0.00

0.00

(800.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

235

Memberships, Registration Fees, And Tuition

(1,500.00)

0.00

(1,500.00) 65.00

0.00

(1,435.00) 4.33% 65.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 4 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  57



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

237

Advertising

0.00

0.00

0.00 75.20

0.00

75.20 No Budget 0.00

0.00

241

Electric

(6,000.00)

0.00

(6,000.00) 3,550.59

0.00

(2,449.41) 59.18% 556.16

0.00

242

Water

(1,200.00)

0.00

(1,200.00) 912.02

0.00

(287.98) 76.00% 98.97

0.00

244

Gas

(1,900.00)

0.00

(1,900.00) 616.28

0.00

(1,283.72) 32.44% 152.41

0.00

245

Telephone And Other Communications

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 4,105.59

0.00

(894.41) 82.11% 650.22

0.00

261

Repair And Maintenance Motor Vehicles

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 3,115.50

0.00

(1,884.50) 62.31% 375.00

0.00

264

Repair And Maint Traffic Lights, Parking Meters

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 0.00

0.00

(500.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

266

Repair And Maintenance Buildings

0.00

0.00

0.00 1,108.00

0.00

1,108.00 No Budget 355.00

0.00

269

Repair And Maintenance Other Repair And

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 270.00

0.00

(730.00) 27.00% 0.00

0.00

280

Travel

(1,500.00)

0.00

(1,500.00) 1,527.87

0.00

27.87 101.86% 0.00

0.00

286

Vehicle Purchase

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 No Budget 0.00

0.00

290

Other Contractural Services

(8,000.00)

0.00

(8,000.00) 3,556.52

0.00

(4,443.48) 44.46% 411.28

0.00

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(360.00)

0.00

(360.00) 165.00

0.00

(195.00) 45.83% 0.00

0.00

298

Collection Fees

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 142.37

0.00

(357.63) 28.47% 0.00

0.00

310

Office Supplies And Materials

(2,800.00)

0.00

(2,800.00) 1,607.95

0.00

(1,192.05) 57.43% 218.76

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 5 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  58



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

320

Operating Supplies

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 2,482.51

0.00

1,982.51 496.50% 0.00

0.00

326

Clothing And Uniforms

(4,000.00)

0.00

(4,000.00) 4,200.00

0.00

200.00 105.00% 0.00

0.00

327

Fire Arm Supplies

(3,500.00)

0.00

(3,500.00) 3,483.00

0.00

(17.00) 99.51% 587.00

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

(3,000.00)

0.00

(3,000.00) 11,838.31

0.00

8,838.31 394.61% 3,606.20

0.00

331

Fuel Charges

(15,000.00)

0.00

(15,000.00) 9,157.53

0.00

(5,842.47) 61.05% 934.92

0.00

333

Other Equipment (Dispatch 911)

(3,500.00)

0.00

(3,500.00) 357.70

0.00

(3,142.30) 10.22% 0.00

0.00

334

Tires, Tubes And Etc.

(2,500.00)

0.00

(2,500.00) 930.92

0.00

(1,569.08) 37.24% 930.92

0.00

900

Capital Outlay

(130,000.00)

0.00

(130,000.00) 149,235.63

0.00

19,235.63 114.80% 3,125.00

0.00

42200 Fire Protection And Control

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

0.00

0.00

0.00 206.55

0.00

206.55 No Budget 0.00

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.17

0.00

0.17 No Budget 0.00

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

0.00

0.00

0.00 25.05

0.00

25.05 No Budget 0.00

0.00

148

Employee Education And Training

(3,500.00)

0.00

(3,500.00) 1,611.85

0.00

(1,888.15) 46.05% 0.00

0.00

162

Volunteer Firemen

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 3,465.64

0.00

(1,534.36) 69.31% 125.00

0.00

216

Radio And Tv Services

(600.00)

0.00

(600.00) 651.95

0.00

51.95 108.66% 0.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 6 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  59



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

220

Printing, Duplicating, Typing, And Binding

(400.00)

0.00

(400.00) 350.00

0.00

(50.00) 87.50% 0.00

0.00

245

Telephone And Other Communications

(600.00)

0.00

(600.00) 915.27

0.00

315.27 82.00% 70.09

0.00

246

Fire Hydrant Rental

(12,200.00)

0.00

(12,200.00) 0.00

0.00

(12,200.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

261

Repair And Maintenance Motor Vehicles

(12,000.00)

0.00

(12,000.00) 6,170.59

0.00

(5,829.41) 51.42% 505.10

0.00

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(600.00)

0.00

(600.00) 0.00

0.00

(600.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(10,000.00)

0.00

(10,000.00) 4,533.59

0.00

(5,466.41) 45.34% 764.62

0.00

322

Chemical, Laboratory, And Medical Supplies

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 710.77

0.00

210.77 142.15% 0.00

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

(600.00)

0.00

(600.00) 1,827.06

0.00

1,227.06 304.51% 0.00

0.00

331

Fuel Charges

(1,100.00)

0.00

(1,100.00) 713.68

0.00

(386.32) 64.88% 0.00

0.00

333

Other Equipment (Dispatch 911)

0.00

0.00

0.00 478.00

0.00

478.00 No Budget 0.00

0.00

340

Norris Volunteer Fire Dept. Expenses

(10,500.00)

0.00

(10,500.00) 2,880.22

0.00

(7,619.78) 27.43% 0.00

0.00

900

Capital Outlay

(19,000.00)

0.00

(19,000.00) 67,107.01

0.00

48,107.01 353.19% 0.00

0.00

43000 Public Works

110

Personnel

(179,199.00)

0.00

(179,199.00) 121,598.80

0.00

(57,600.20) 67.86% 13,430.80

0.00

112

Over-Time Personnel

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 941.10

0.00

441.10 188.22% 0.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 7 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  60



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

114

Part-Time Personnel

(4,800.00)

0.00

(4,800.00) 3,600.00

0.00

(1,200.00) 75.00% 400.00

0.00

134

Christmas Bonus

(6,433.00)

0.00

(6,433.00) 2,874.84

0.00

(3,558.16) 44.69% 0.00

0.00

135

Animal Control Bonus

0.00

0.00

0.00 300.00

0.00

300.00 No Budget 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(14,607.00)

0.00

(14,607.00) 9,771.40

0.00

(4,835.60) 66.90% 1,044.41

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

(51,327.00)

0.00

(51,327.00) 37,080.89

0.00

(14,246.11) 72.24% 4,178.32

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

(6,254.00)

0.00

(6,254.00) 6,729.83

0.00

475.83 107.61% 844.34

0.00

146

Workmen's Compensation

(7,560.00)

0.00

(7,560.00) 6,247.51

0.00

(1,312.49) 82.64% 0.00

0.00

147

Unemployment Insurance

(200.00)

0.00

(200.00) 95.55

0.00

(104.45) 47.78% 18.00

0.00

148

Employee Education And Training

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 25.00

0.00

(975.00) 2.50% 0.00

0.00

235

Memberships, Registration Fees, And Tuition

(300.00)

0.00

(300.00) 0.00

0.00

(300.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

241

Electric

(2,400.00)

0.00

(2,400.00) 1,584.77

0.00

(815.23) 66.03% 235.85

0.00

242

Water

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 655.76

0.00

(344.24) 65.58% 81.97

0.00

245

Telephone And Other Communications

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 2,318.57

0.00

(2,681.43) 46.37% 458.54

0.00

247

Street Lighting (Electric And Maint.)

(25,000.00)

0.00

(25,000.00) 17,578.18

0.00

(7,421.82) 70.31% 3,026.49

0.00

261

Repair And Maintenance Motor Vehicles

(8,000.00)

0.00

(8,000.00) 10,683.66

0.00

2,683.66 133.55% 406.88

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 8 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  61



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

265

Repair And Maintenance Grounds And Ground

(20,000.00)

0.00

(20,000.00) 706.34

0.00

(19,293.66) 3.53% 67.79

0.00

266

Repair And Maintenance Buildings

(14,000.00)

0.00

(14,000.00) 1,041.83

0.00

(12,958.17) 7.44% 245.54

0.00

268

Repair And Maintenance Roads And Streets

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 7,839.11

0.00

2,839.11 156.78% 2,909.70

0.00

269

Repair And Maintenance Other Repair And

(12,000.00)

0.00

(12,000.00) 1,883.73

0.00

(10,116.27) 15.70% 0.00

0.00

280

Travel

(200.00)

0.00

(200.00) 0.00

0.00

(200.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(300.00)

0.00

(300.00) 0.00

0.00

(300.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

310

Office Supplies And Materials

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 79.98

0.00

(420.02) 16.00% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(2,700.00)

0.00

(2,700.00) 829.47

0.00

(1,870.53) 30.72% 329.88

0.00

326

Clothing And Uniforms

(3,000.00)

0.00

(3,000.00) 2,606.39

0.00

(393.61) 86.88% 247.17

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

0.00

0.00

0.00 59.98

0.00

59.98 No Budget 59.98

0.00

331

Fuel Charges

(15,000.00)

0.00

(15,000.00) 7,226.59

0.00

(7,773.41) 48.18% 400.00

0.00

334

Tires, Tubes And Etc.

(2,000.00)

0.00

(2,000.00) 200.14

0.00

(1,799.86) 10.01% 0.00

0.00

341

Consumable Tools

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 1,185.91

0.00

185.91 118.59% 121.13

0.00

342

Sign Parts And Supplies

(600.00)

0.00

(600.00) 1,387.61

0.00

787.61 231.27% 0.00

0.00

471

Asphalt And Asphalt Filler

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 2,690.37

0.00

(2,309.63) 53.81% 0.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 9 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  62



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

900

Capital Outlay

(122,000.00)

0.00

(122,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(122,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

940

Machinery And Equipment

(14,000.00)

0.00

(14,000.00) 157,039.65

0.00

143,039.65 1121.71% 0.00

0.00

44400 Recreation

110

Personnel

0.00

0.00

0.00 4,107.97

0.00

4,107.97 No Budget 0.00

0.00

114

Part-Time Personnel

(6,500.00)

0.00

(6,500.00) 0.00

0.00

(6,500.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(497.00)

0.00

(497.00) 314.26

0.00

(182.74) 63.23% 0.00

0.00

147

Unemployment Insurance

(195.00)

0.00

(195.00) 12.32

0.00

(182.68) 6.32% 0.00

0.00

237

Advertising

0.00

0.00

0.00 78.46

0.00

78.46 No Budget 0.00

0.00

241

Electric

(650.00)

0.00

(650.00) 387.37

0.00

(262.63) 59.60% 47.77

0.00

242

Water

(3,500.00)

0.00

(3,500.00) 3,161.54

0.00

(338.46) 90.33% 0.00

0.00

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(300.00)

0.00

(300.00) 0.00

0.00

(300.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

312

Small Items Of Equipment

(2,200.00)

0.00

(2,200.00) 936.66

0.00

(1,263.34) 42.58% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

0.00

0.00

0.00 4,265.36

0.00

4,265.36 No Budget 0.00

0.00

325

Fireworks Supplies

(8,000.00)

0.00

(8,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(8,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

(2,000.00)

0.00

(2,000.00) 953.41

0.00

(1,046.59) 47.67% 0.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 10 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  63



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

720

Grants And Donations To Other Institutions

0.00

0.00

0.00 350.00

0.00

350.00 No Budget 0.00

0.00

900

Capital Outlay

(150,000.00)

0.00

(150,000.00) 10,805.18

0.00

(139,194.82) 7.20% 2,683.50

0.00

44800 Libraries

329

Other Oper. Supplies

(950.00)

0.00

(950.00) 1,523.29

0.00

573.29 160.35% 0.00

0.00

720

Grants And Donations To Other Institutions

(32,250.00)

0.00

(32,250.00) 24,187.50

0.00

(8,062.50) 75.00% 0.00

0.00

45100 Conservation Of Natural Resources

269

Repair And Maintenance Other Repair And

(200.00)

0.00

(200.00) 321.81

0.00

121.81 160.91% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(3,300.00)

0.00

(3,300.00) 349.72

0.00

(2,950.28) 10.60% 76.72

0.00

551

Trustee Fees

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 No Budget 0.00

0.00

45160 Other Natural Resources

241

Electric

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 636.38

0.00

(363.62) 63.64% 155.61

0.00

242

Water

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 655.76

0.00

(344.24) 65.58% 81.97

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

(6,000.00)

0.00

(6,000.00) 6,888.03

0.00

888.03 114.80% 829.57

0.00

47100 Economic Development Administration

237

Advertising

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(5,500.00)

0.00

(5,500.00) 250.00

0.00

(5,250.00) 4.55% 0.00

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

(3,000.00)

0.00

(3,000.00) 90.00

0.00

(2,910.00) 3.00% 90.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 11 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  64



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

110

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

900

Capital Outlay

(5,400.00)

0.00

(5,400.00) 0.00

0.00

(5,400.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

Total For Fund: 110

0.00 0.00

(2,363,671.00)

0.00

(2,363,671.00) (620,135.49) 146,914.781,743,535.51 73.76 %

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 12 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  65



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

121

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

43100 Highways And Streets

268

Repair And Maintenance Roads And Streets

(150,000.00)

0.00

(150,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(150,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

Total For Fund: 121

0.00 0.00

(150,000.00)

0.00

(150,000.00) (150,000.00) 0.000.00 0.00 %

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 13 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  66



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

123

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

45100 Conservation Of Natural Resources

114

Part-Time Personnel

(18,600.00)

0.00

(18,600.00) 5,517.15

0.00

(13,082.85) 29.66% 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(1,423.00)

0.00

(1,423.00) 422.05

0.00

(1,000.95) 29.66% 0.00

0.00

147

Unemployment Insurance

(30.00)

0.00

(30.00) 16.56

0.00

(13.44) 55.20% 0.00

0.00

220

Printing, Duplicating, Typing, And Binding

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 1,713.00

0.00

713.00 171.30% 0.00

0.00

259

Other Professional Services

0.00

0.00

0.00 4,198.65

0.00

4,198.65 No Budget 402.50

0.00

261

Repair And Maintenance Motor Vehicles

(1,500.00)

0.00

(1,500.00) 735.70

0.00

(764.30) 49.05% 164.45

0.00

265

Repair And Maintenance Grounds And Ground

(13,500.00)

0.00

(13,500.00) 7,649.98

0.00

(5,850.02) 56.67% 1,231.89

0.00

290

Other Contractural Services

(1,500.00)

0.00

(1,500.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,500.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(360.00)

0.00

(360.00) 0.00

0.00

(360.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

310

Office Supplies And Materials

(85.00)

0.00

(85.00) 0.00

0.00

(85.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(200.00)

0.00

(200.00) 29.61

0.00

(170.39) 14.81% 0.00

0.00

331

Fuel Charges

(350.00)

0.00

(350.00) 192.50

0.00

(157.50) 55.00% 0.00

0.00

342

Sign Parts And Supplies

(400.00)

0.00

(400.00) 359.97

0.00

(40.03) 89.99% 0.00

0.00

551

Trustee Fees

(1,670.00)

0.00

(1,670.00) 2,351.00

0.00

681.00 140.78% 1,299.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 14 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  67



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

123

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

900

Capital Outlay

(36,500.00)

0.00

(36,500.00) 4,900.00

0.00

(31,600.00) 13.42% 0.00

0.00

51600 Operating Transfers Out

759

Transfers To General Funds

(45,290.00)

0.00

(45,290.00) 0.00

0.00

(45,290.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

Total For Fund: 123

0.00 0.00

(122,408.00)

0.00

(122,408.00) (94,321.83) 3,097.8428,086.17 22.94 %

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 15 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  68



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

128

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

43230 Solid Waste Collection

248

Recycle/Residential Contract

(47,500.00)

0.00

(47,500.00) 33,088.36

0.00

(14,411.64) 69.66% 4,047.38

0.00

249

Refuse/Residential Contract

(75,500.00)

0.00

(75,500.00) 52,957.04

0.00

(22,542.96) 70.14% 6,548.44

0.00

254

Architectural, Engineering, And Landscaping

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 No Budget 0.00

0.00

258

Commercial Refuse

(32,500.00)

0.00

(32,500.00) 23,163.83

0.00

(9,336.17) 71.27% 2,896.70

0.00

Total For Fund: 128

0.00 0.00

(155,500.00)

0.00

(155,500.00) (46,290.77) 13,492.52109,209.23 70.23 %

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 16 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  69



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

413

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

52113 Purification

110

Personnel

(69,777.00)

0.00

(69,777.00) 36,795.44

0.00

(32,981.56) 52.73% 3,896.84

0.00

112

Over-Time Personnel

(3,800.00)

0.00

(3,800.00) 2,800.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 73.68% 200.00

0.00

114

Part-Time Personnel

(9,620.00)

0.00

(9,620.00) 29,702.99

0.00

20,082.99 308.76% 2,935.16

0.00

134

Christmas Bonus

(217.00)

0.00

(217.00) 216.56

0.00

(0.44) 99.80% 0.00

0.00

137

Certification Bonus

(1,700.00)

0.00

(1,700.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,700.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(6,512.00)

0.00

(6,512.00) 5,241.85

0.00

(1,270.15) 80.50% 528.97

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

(34,539.00)

0.00

(34,539.00) 10,976.85

0.00

(23,562.15) 31.78% 1,240.23

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

(2,627.00)

0.00

(2,627.00) 1,370.49

0.00

(1,256.51) 52.17% 142.58

0.00

148

Employee Education And Training

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 1,000.13

0.00

500.13 200.03% 663.36

0.00

170

Fees

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

241

Electric

(40,500.00)

0.00

(40,500.00) 23,355.35

0.00

(17,144.65) 57.67% 3,500.67

0.00

244

Gas

(6,000.00)

0.00

(6,000.00) 2,643.93

0.00

(3,356.07) 44.07% 0.00

0.00

245

Telephone And Other Communications

(6,000.00)

0.00

(6,000.00) 2,625.67

0.00

(3,374.33) 43.76% 179.09

0.00

260

Repair And Maintenance Services

(15,000.00)

0.00

(15,000.00) 4,586.62

0.00

(10,413.38) 30.58% 2,158.49

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 17 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  70



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

413

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(240.00)

0.00

(240.00) 0.00

0.00

(240.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(2,500.00)

0.00

(2,500.00) 7,294.66

0.00

4,794.66 291.79% 0.00

0.00

322

Chemical, Laboratory, And Medical Supplies

(15,000.00)

0.00

(15,000.00) 15,430.04

0.00

430.04 102.87% 826.41

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

389

Independent Lab Anaylsis

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

900

Capital Outlay

(41,000.00)

0.00

(41,000.00) 5,983.50

0.00

(35,016.50) 14.59% 0.00

0.00

52114 Transmission And Distribution

110

Personnel

(37,980.00)

0.00

(37,980.00) 22,520.22

0.00

(15,459.78) 59.29% 2,877.88

0.00

112

Over-Time Personnel

(4,600.00)

0.00

(4,600.00) 3,985.15

0.00

(614.85) 86.63% 200.00

0.00

114

Part-Time Personnel

(9,620.00)

0.00

(9,620.00) 6,625.55

0.00

(2,994.45) 68.87% 698.18

0.00

134

Christmas Bonus

(108.00)

0.00

(108.00) 108.28

0.00

0.28 100.26% 0.00

0.00

137

Certification Bonus

(1,500.00)

0.00

(1,500.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,500.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(4,117.00)

0.00

(4,117.00) 2,537.79

0.00

(1,579.21) 61.64% 288.71

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

(22,334.00)

0.00

(22,334.00) 685.78

0.00

(21,648.22) 3.07% 22.83

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

(1,538.00)

0.00

(1,538.00) 259.29

0.00

(1,278.71) 16.86% 107.10

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 18 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  71



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

413

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

260

Repair And Maintenance Services

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 4,212.35

0.00

3,212.35 421.24% 0.00

0.00

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(240.00)

0.00

(240.00) 355.00

0.00

115.00 147.92% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 1,068.46

0.00

68.46 62.00% 0.00

0.00

322

Chemical, Laboratory, And Medical Supplies

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

329

Other Oper. Supplies

0.00

0.00

0.00 450.00

0.00

450.00 No Budget 0.00

0.00

331

Fuel Charges

(9,000.00)

0.00

(9,000.00) 5,771.06

0.00

(3,228.94) 64.12% 704.31

0.00

332

Motor Vehicle Parts

(3,000.00)

0.00

(3,000.00) 1,843.83

0.00

(1,156.17) 61.46% 0.00

0.00

338

Repair Parts For Water Or Sewer Lines, Meters,

(26,000.00)

0.00

(26,000.00) 22,189.11

0.00

(3,810.89) 85.34% 1,481.87

0.00

341

Consumable Tools

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 1,331.55

0.00

331.55 133.16% 500.00

0.00

391

Water Meters

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

900

Capital Outlay

(44,000.00)

0.00

(44,000.00) 10,728.57

0.00

(33,271.43) 24.38% 0.00

0.00

934

Drainage, Water Supply And Storage, Sewage

(15,000.00)

0.00

(15,000.00) 6,335.00

0.00

(8,665.00) 42.23% 0.00

0.00

52211 Sewer Collection (Lines)

110

Personnel

(19,118.00)

0.00

(19,118.00) 10,524.60

0.00

(8,593.40) 55.05% 1,559.20

0.00

112

Over-Time Personnel

(6,600.00)

0.00

(6,600.00) 1,189.48

0.00

(5,410.52) 18.02% 609.36

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 19 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  72



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

413

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

114

Part-Time Personnel

(9,620.00)

0.00

(9,620.00) 6,236.69

0.00

(3,383.31) 64.83% 677.66

0.00

134

Christmas Bonus

0.00

0.00

0.00 108.28

0.00

108.28 No Budget 0.00

0.00

137

Certification Bonus

(750.00)

0.00

(750.00) 0.00

0.00

(750.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(2,761.00)

0.00

(2,761.00) 1,369.09

0.00

(1,391.91) 49.59% 215.26

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

(11,513.00)

0.00

(11,513.00) 4,242.76

0.00

(7,270.24) 36.85% 771.00

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

(921.00)

0.00

(921.00) 48.34

0.00

(872.66) 5.25% 48.34

0.00

148

Employee Education And Training

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 285.00

0.00

(215.00) 57.00% 185.00

0.00

241

Electric

(1,300.00)

0.00

(1,300.00) 702.48

0.00

(597.52) 54.04% 95.93

0.00

260

Repair And Maintenance Services

(7,500.00)

0.00

(7,500.00) 15,806.04

0.00

8,306.04 210.75% 1,123.79

0.00

291

Physical/Drug Testing

(240.00)

0.00

(240.00) 0.00

0.00

(240.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 659.86

0.00

(340.14) 65.99% 0.00

0.00

900

Capital Outlay

(10,000.00)

0.00

(10,000.00) 13,588.04

0.00

3,588.04 135.88% 0.00

0.00

934

Drainage, Water Supply And Storage, Sewage

(815,140.00)

0.00

(815,140.00) 43,445.64

0.00

(771,694.36) 5.33% 15,235.13

0.00

52213 Sewer Treatment And Disposal

110

Personnel

(64,597.00)

0.00

(64,597.00) 55,299.58

0.00

(9,297.42) 85.61% 6,528.20

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 20 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  73



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

413

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

112

Over-Time Personnel

(6,100.00)

0.00

(6,100.00) 2,361.76

0.00

(3,738.24) 38.72% 400.00

0.00

134

Christmas Bonus

(2,008.00)

0.00

(2,008.00) 108.28

0.00

(1,899.72) 5.39% 0.00

0.00

137

Certification Bonus

(1,500.00)

0.00

(1,500.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,500.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(5,677.00)

0.00

(5,677.00) 4,369.25

0.00

(1,307.75) 76.96% 523.81

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

(17,727.00)

0.00

(17,727.00) 16,995.39

0.00

(731.61) 95.87% 2,046.90

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

(4,319.00)

0.00

(4,319.00) 2,763.17

0.00

(1,555.83) 63.98% 339.61

0.00

148

Employee Education And Training

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 900.00

0.00

400.00 180.00% 0.00

0.00

170

Fees

(4,000.00)

0.00

(4,000.00) 2,867.50

0.00

(1,132.50) 71.69% 0.00

0.00

241

Electric

(35,000.00)

0.00

(35,000.00) 22,302.49

0.00

(12,697.51) 63.72% 2,818.38

0.00

245

Telephone And Other Communications

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 2,809.87

0.00

(2,190.13) 56.20% 384.68

0.00

260

Repair And Maintenance Services

(16,500.00)

0.00

(16,500.00) 16,862.28

0.00

362.28 102.20% 1,765.00

0.00

295

Landfill Services

(15,000.00)

0.00

(15,000.00) 9,709.67

0.00

(5,290.33) 64.73% 0.00

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(10,000.00)

0.00

(10,000.00) 2,337.68

0.00

(7,662.32) 23.38% 20.94

0.00

322

Chemical, Laboratory, And Medical Supplies

(21,000.00)

0.00

(21,000.00) 12,897.64

0.00

(8,102.36) 61.42% 34.18

0.00

326

Clothing And Uniforms

(5,000.00)

0.00

(5,000.00) 3,595.24

0.00

(1,404.76) 71.90% 0.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 21 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  74



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

413

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

329

Other Oper. Supplies

0.00

0.00

0.00 345.64

0.00

345.64 No Budget 0.00

0.00

934

Drainage, Water Supply And Storage, Sewage

0.00

0.00

0.00 14,219.25

0.00

14,219.25 No Budget 0.00

0.00

52316 Customer Accounting & Collection

211

Postage, Box Rent, Etc.

(6,000.00)

0.00

(6,000.00) 4,419.82

0.00

(1,580.18) 73.66% 0.00

0.00

255

Data Processing Services

(14,000.00)

0.00

(14,000.00) 16,740.74

0.00

2,740.74 119.58% 0.00

0.00

52317 Administrative & General Expenses

110

Personnel

(99,999.00)

0.00

(99,999.00) 72,208.75

0.00

(27,790.25) 72.21% 7,307.70

0.00

111

Secretary/Treasury Personnel

(9,000.00)

0.00

(9,000.00) 5,307.58

0.00

(3,692.42) 58.97% 692.30

0.00

112

Over-Time Personnel

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

114

Part-Time Personnel

0.00

0.00

0.00 448.20

0.00

448.20 No Budget 0.00

0.00

133

City Bonus

(750.00)

0.00

(750.00) 375.00

0.00

(375.00) 50.00% 0.00

0.00

134

Christmas Bonus

(217.00)

0.00

(217.00) 216.56

0.00

(0.44) 99.80% 0.00

0.00

137

Certification Bonus

(6,000.00)

0.00

(6,000.00) 6,000.00

0.00

0.00 100.00% 0.00

0.00

141

Payroll Taxes (Ssa-Med.)

(8,566.00)

0.00

(8,566.00) 6,421.58

0.00

(2,144.42) 74.97% 607.67

0.00

142

Hospital And Health Insurance

(17,727.00)

0.00

(17,727.00) 13,484.49

0.00

(4,242.51) 76.07% 1,465.86

0.00

143

Retirement - Current

(6,597.00)

0.00

(6,597.00) 4,347.18

0.00

(2,249.82) 65.90% 449.40

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 22 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  75



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

413

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

146

Workmen's Compensation

(10,100.00)

0.00

(10,100.00) 8,346.00

0.00

(1,754.00) 82.63% 0.00

0.00

147

Unemployment Insurance

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 0.00

0.00

(500.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

148

Employee Education And Training

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 125.00

0.00

(375.00) 25.00% 100.00

0.00

220

Printing, Duplicating, Typing, And Binding

(1,250.00)

0.00

(1,250.00) 2,028.11

0.00

778.11 162.25% 297.88

0.00

235

Memberships, Registration Fees, And Tuition

(3,000.00)

0.00

(3,000.00) 2,243.76

0.00

(756.24) 74.79% 0.00

0.00

237

Advertising

(800.00)

0.00

(800.00) 160.00

0.00

(640.00) 20.00% 0.00

0.00

250

Professional Services

(88,275.00)

0.00

(88,275.00) 63,087.69

0.00

(25,187.31) 71.47% 7,401.32

0.00

252

Legal Services

(800.00)

0.00

(800.00) 586.15

0.00

(213.85) 73.27% 0.00

0.00

253

Accounting And Auditing Services

(13,000.00)

0.00

(13,000.00) 13,782.15

0.00

782.15 106.02% 3,247.15

0.00

256

Consultant's Services

(1,000.00)

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(1,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

280

Travel

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 0.00

0.00

(500.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

310

Office Supplies And Materials

(2,500.00)

0.00

(2,500.00) 2,371.55

0.00

(128.45) 94.86% 120.84

0.00

320

Operating Supplies

(500.00)

0.00

(500.00) 0.00

0.00

(500.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

510

Liability Insurance

(22,064.00)

0.00

(22,064.00) 29,905.00

0.00

7,841.00 135.54% 0.00

0.00

555

Bank Service Charges

(2,000.00)

0.00

(2,000.00) 1,184.66

0.00

(815.34) 59.23% 0.00

0.00

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 23 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  76



Total  Budget

Fund :

Actual/
Encumbrance

413

Object
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Original Budget/
Amendments Funds Available

Sub
Object

YTD

% Used

MTD
Cost

Center

66.67%Monthly Comparative:

734

Customer Reimbursement

0.00

0.00

0.00 1,957.94

0.00

1,957.94 No Budget 1,901.85

0.00

948

Computer Equipment

(3,000.00)

0.00

(3,000.00) 2,867.55

0.00

(132.45) 95.59% 312.45

0.00

52523 Depreciation

540

Depreciation

(100,000.00)

0.00

(100,000.00) 0.00

0.00

(100,000.00) 0.00% 0.00

0.00

Total For Fund: 413

0.00 0.00

(1,963,105.00)

0.00

(1,963,105.00) (1,194,507.48) 82,439.47768,597.52 39.15 %

Statement of Expenditures and Encumbrances
Sandy Johnson

3/6/2024 3:34 PM
City of Norris

Page 24 of 24

Template Name:
Created by:

User:LGC Stmt of Exp & Enc - City

February 2024
Date/Time:LGC

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  77



2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2022-23
ADJ Totals ADJ Totals ADJ Actual ADJ Actual Budgeted Jul Actual Aug Actual Sep Actual Oct Actual Nov Actual Dec Actual Jan Actual Feb Actual Actual

Revenues 1,466,131$  1,818,338$  1,701,743$  2,182,164$  2,066,680$  151,286$     615,366$     208,002$     131,663$     85,630$        63,421$        124,449$     109,498$     1,489,315$  72.1%

Expenses
General Government 273,423$     281,555$     298,842$     474,205$     837,500$     71,750$        59,227$        105,526$     69,266$        54,311$        45,742$        68,501$        46,455$        520,778$     62.2%
Police 507,317$     487,500$     529,446$     580,704$     935,109$     117,242$     71,913$        85,974$        56,239$        120,572$     52,347$        92,864$        66,526$        663,677$     71.0%
Fire 38,986$        26,301$        37,514$        60,316$        147,600$     5,017$          3,782$          79$               25,694$        4,052$          3,523$          48,035$        1,467$          91,649$        62.1%
Public Works 392,034$     602,037$     311,520$     603,971$     717,879$     26,267$        192,602$     35,162$        29,514$        29,190$        28,345$        37,279$        28,506$        406,865$     56.7%
Parks & Recreation 5,629$          13,917$        20,121$        31,725$        180,092$     5,011$          5,987$          544$             9,258$          1,071$          342$             428$             2,731$          25,372$        14.1%
Library & Archives 32,246$        32,246$        32,246$        32,252$        33,800$        8,063$          -$              -$              9,585$          -$              -$              8,063$          -$              25,711$        76.1%
Conservation of NR - Landscaping 678$             1,595$          3,180$          5,716$          3,500$          -$              37$               -$              248$             -$              37$               273$             77$               672$             19.2%
Other NR - Animal Shelter 4,566$          5,195$          5,742$          6,927$          8,000$          425$             187$             180$             520$             145$             178$             5,478$          1,067$          8,180$          102.3%
Community Development -$              5,000$          5,608$          6,019$          6,230$          250$             -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              90$               340$             5.5%

Total Expenses 1,254,879$  1,455,346$  1,244,219$  1,801,835$  2,869,711$  234,025$     333,735$     227,465$     200,324$     209,341$     130,514$     260,921$     146,919$     1,743,244$  60.7%

Transfers & Miscellanous -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Balance 211,252$     362,992$     457,524$     380,329$     (803,031)$    (82,739)$      281,631$     (19,463)$      (68,661)$      (123,711)$    (67,093)$      (136,472)$    (37,421)$      (253,929)$    

Beginning Fund Balance 662,003$     873,255$     1,189,192$  1,682,506$  2,062,835$  2,062,835$  1,980,096$  2,261,727$  2,242,264$  2,173,603$  2,049,892$  1,982,799$  1,846,327$  2,062,835$  
Ending Fund Balance 873,255$     1,189,192$  1,682,506$  2,062,835$  1,259,804$  1,980,096$  2,261,727$  2,242,264$  2,173,603$  2,049,892$  1,982,799$  1,846,327$  1,808,906$  1,808,906$  

Capital Outlays  908,900$     50,575$        155,339$     25,204$        28,680$        37,023$        6,154$          75,736$        5,808$          384,519$     42.3%

(32,164)$      436,970$     5,741$          (39,981)$      (86,688)$      (60,939)$      (60,736)$      (31,613)$      130,590$     

General  Fund Budget Balance Report

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  78



2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
ADJ Totals ADJ Totals ADJ Actual ADJ Actual Actual Budget Jul Actual Aug Actual Sep Actual Oct Actual Nov Actual Dec Actual Jan Actual Feb Actual Actual

Revenues 57,638$     53,195$        57,023$    61,919$    61,919$     55,900$     4,895$       4,603$        5,454$       6,347$       5,439$        4,638$       4,542$       4,768$       42,993$     76.9%

Expenses -$           -$              148,710$  -$          -$           150,000$  -$           -$            -$            -$           -$            -$            -$           -$            -$           0.0%

Balance 57,638$     53,195$        (91,687)$   61,919$    61,919$     (94,100)$   4,895$       4,603$        5,454$       6,347$       5,439$        4,638$       4,542$       4,768$       42,993$     

Beginning Fund Balance 176,944$  234,582$     287,777$  196,090$  221,529$  258,009$  258,009$  262,904$   267,507$   272,961$  279,308$    284,747$   289,385$  293,927$   258,009$  
Ending Fund Balance 234,582$  287,777$     196,090$  258,009$  283,448$  163,909$  262,904$  267,507$   272,961$   279,308$  284,747$    289,385$   293,927$  298,695$   301,002$  

State Street Aid Fund Balance Report

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  79



2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23
ADJ Totals ADJ Totals ADJ Actual ADJ Actual Budget Jul Actual Aug Actual Sep Actual Oct Actual Nov Actual Dec Actual Jan Actual Feb Actual Actual

Revenues 69,188$     76,585$     74,189$     95,225$     102,820$    24,834$     17,010$     8,089$       12,715$     9,925$        4,166$       12,093$     9,115$       97,947$     95.3%

Expenses 45,929$     29,701$     60,548$     61,352$     149,408$    7,754$       9,005$        1,145$       2,658$       2,245$        1,085$       1,097$       3,099$       28,088$     18.8%

Balance 23,259$     46,884$     13,641$     33,873$     (46,588)$     17,080$     8,005$        6,944$       10,057$     7,680$        3,081$       10,996$     6,016$       69,859$     

Transfer to Special Projects 5,900.00$   -$           -$            -$           -$           -$            -$           -$           -$           -$           

Balance after Transfer (52,488)$     17,080$     8,005$        6,944$       10,057$     7,680$        3,081$       10,996$     6,016$       69,859$     

Beginning Fund Balance 178,621$  201,880$  248,764$   262,405$   296,278$    296,278$  313,358$   321,363$   328,307$  338,364$    346,044$   349,125$  360,121$   296,278$  
Ending Fund Balance 201,880$  248,764$  262,405$   296,278$   243,790$    313,358$  321,363$   328,307$   338,364$  346,044$    349,125$   360,121$  366,137$   366,137$  

Capital Outlays  63,500$      -$           4,900$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$           -$           4,900$       7.7%

Watershed Fund Balance Report

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  80



2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23
ADJ Totals ADJ Totals ADJ Actual ADJ Actual Budget Jul Actual Aug Actual Sep Actual Oct Actual Nov Actual Dec Actual Jan Actual Feb Actual Actual

Revenues 132,040$  137,997$  138,817$  125,653$  157,572$  11,606$   13,288$     13,055$     13,840$    12,471$     13,565$     13,055$    12,902$     103,782$  65.9%

Expenses 127,502$  122,540$  146,737$  156,019$  155,500$  12,815$   13,372$     14,091$     13,841$    14,007$     13,771$     13,820$    13,492$     109,209$  70.2%

Balance 4,538$      15,457$    (7,920)$      (30,366)$   2,072$      (1,209)$    (84)$            (1,036)$      (1)$             (1,536)$      (206)$         (765)$        (590)$         (5,427)$     

Beginning Fund Balance 38,840$    43,378$    58,835$     50,915$     20,549$    20,549$   19,340$     19,256$     18,220$    18,219$     16,683$     16,477$    15,712$     20,549$    
Ending Fund Balance 43,378$    58,835$    50,915$     20,549$     22,621$    19,340$   19,256$     18,220$     18,219$    16,683$     16,477$     15,712$    15,122$     15,122$    

Solid Waste Fund Balance Report

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  81



2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
ADJ Totals ADJ Totals ADJ Actual ADJ Actual Budget Jul Actual Aug Actual Sep Actual Oct Actual Nov Actual Dec Actual Jan Actual Feb Actual Actual

Revenues
Water Billing 455,106$  507,434$      484,052$      521,523$      529,000$      47,818$        47,769$        50,094$        48,348$        48,391$        44,906$        44,905$        47,256$        379,487$      71.7%
Sewer Billing 420,373$  418,523$      425,397$      493,633$      510,700$      42,896$        42,896$        47,428$        43,532$        43,714$        43,180$        43,179$        43,779$        350,604$      68.7%
Water Works Charges 46,446$    43,576$        53,837$        22,569$        886,643$      6,162$          744$              1,926$          6,823$          4,755$          3,000$          7,839$          5,781$          37,030$        4.2%
Interest Income -$           -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               

Total Revenues 921,925$  969,533$      963,286$      1,037,725$  1,926,343$  96,876$        91,409$        99,448$        98,703$        96,860$        91,086$        95,923$        96,816$        767,121$      39.8%

Expenses
Admin & General 254,371$  245,123$      186,711$      276,417$      340,645$      24,468$        24,948$        26,691$        61,765$        23,415$        20,229$        32,036$        23,905$        237,457$      69.7%
Customer Billing 13,996$    11,335$        12,849$        16,453$        23,000$        14,765$        2,383$          -$               -$               1,821$          2,116$          76$                -$               21,161$        92.0%
Wastewater Treatment & Disposal172,800$  175,163$      154,499$      196,258$      213,928$      18,587$        31,386$        28,540$        19,620$        14,941$        20,882$        21,926$        14,863$        170,745$      79.8%
Wastewater Collection 29,325$    34,139$        177,102$      50,248$        886,962$      1,001$          22,999$        4,423$          7,479$          3,502$          22,363$        15,919$        20,520$        98,206$        11.1%
Water Transmission & Dist 61,579$    95,431$        108,268$      59,283$        184,037$      2,921$          5,379$          12,812$        30,662$        9,409$          12,290$        10,652$        6,882$          91,007$        49.5%
Water Purification 111,894$  108,789$      122,416$      213,445$      302,532$      17,325$        25,516$        13,526$        13,356$        23,397$        21,810$        18,826$        16,269$        150,025$      49.6%

Total Expenses 643,965$  669,980$      761,845$      812,104$      1,951,104$  79,067$        112,611$      85,992$        132,882$      76,485$        99,690$        99,435$        82,439$        768,601$      39.4%

Balance 277,960$  299,553$      201,441$      225,621$      (24,761)$      17,809$        (21,202)$      13,456$        (34,179)$      20,375$        (8,604)$         (3,512)$         14,377$        (1,480)$         

Depreciation 98,000$    104,004$      107,316$      32,374$        100,000$      -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               

Operating Available Flow 179,960$  195,549$      94,125$        193,247$      (124,761)$    17,809$        (21,202)$      13,456$        (34,179)$      20,375$        (8,604)$         (3,512)$         14,377$        (1,480)$         

Beginning Fund Balance 728,258$  908,218$      1,103,767$  1,197,892$  1,391,139$  1,391,139$  1,408,948$  1,387,746$  1,401,202$  1,367,023$  1,387,398$  1,378,794$  1,375,282$  1,391,139$  
Ending Fund Balance 908,218$  1,103,767$  1,197,892$  1,391,139$  1,266,378$  1,408,948$  1,387,746$  1,401,202$  1,367,023$  1,387,398$  1,378,794$  1,375,282$  1,389,659$  1,389,659$  

Capital Outlays  1,013,140$  625$              23,635$        9,511$          16,706$        9,250$          11,676$        10,218$        15,548$        97,169$        9.6%

Water Works Fund Balance Report

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  82



2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
ADJ Totals ADJ Totals Actual Actual Budget Jul Actual Aug Actual Sep Actual Oct Actual Nov Actual Dec Actual Jan Actual Feb Actual Actual

Revenues 71$           34$           -$      1,000$  -$        -$          -$            -$           -$           -$            -$           -$           -$           -$         

Expenses -$         -$         -$      -$      -$        -$          -$            -$           -$           -$            -$           -$           -$           -$         

Balance 71$           34$           -$      1,000$  -$        -$          -$            -$           -$           -$            -$           -$           -$           -$         

Beginning Fund Balance 1,459$     1,530$     1,531$  1,531$  2,531$    2,531$     2,531$        2,531$       2,531$       2,531$        2,531$       2,531$      2,531$       2,531$     
Ending Fund Balance 1,530$     1,564$     1,531$  2,531$  2,531$    2,531$     2,531$        2,531$       2,531$       2,531$        2,531$       2,531$      2,531$       2,531$     

Drug Control Fund Balance Report

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  83



TO:  Norris City Council     
DATE:  March 11, 2024 
FROM:  Adam Ledford      
RE:   City Manager’s Report 
 

 
1. 2023-24 Year to Date Budget    

Revenues and Expenditures:  
a. General fund revenues through the first 8 months of the fiscal year totaled $1,489,315 or 72.1% of the plan, 
well above the level loaded average of 66.7%.  The number was behind last year at this time by roughly 
$362,173.  This shift is directly related to 2 unique revenues from last year that were not anticipated to be 
continuing sources (the City received $104,000 from the County as a match associated with a project and the 
City received COVID direct allocation funds).  If you take those 2 numbers out, organically, the current year is out 
performing last year by roughly $217,162. 
b. General fund expenditures of $1,743,244 reflect 60.7% of planned expenses, adjusted for proposed budget 
amendments, giving consideration for annual expenditures planned at the beginning of the fiscal year, rolled 
over capital projects, legal fees, and anticipated 1-time capital expenditures approved for the current fiscal year.  
The February number higher than last year by roughly $484,388. 
c. General fund expended 42.3%, or $384,519 of the updated capital expenditures plan for the fiscal year. 
d. Water/Sewer revenues resulted in $767,121 or 39.8% of the adjusted plan, however if you remove 
anticipated grant funds, the total represented 69% of organic revenue anticipated.  The number outpacing last 
year by roughly $87,578. 
e. Water/Sewer expenditures totaled $768,601 or 39.4% of the fiscal year adjusted plan.  The number more 
than last year by roughly $217,479.  This increase is partially driven by $97,169 of planned capital expenditures 
or 9.6% of the fiscal year budget. 
f. Watershed revenues of $97,947 represents 95.3% of adjusted fiscal year revenue expectations headed by 
rifle range permits and interest.  This is an increase over last year by about $15,531 through the same period. 
g. Watershed expended 7.7%, or $4,900 of the planned capital expenditures for the fiscal year.  The remaining 
expenditures are backend loaded for the 4th quarter of the fiscal year. 
h. Street Aid revenues of $42,993 presented a consistent mark beating expectations at 76.9%.  This increase is 
driven by interest on the fund. 
i. Solid Waste expenditures are currently $109,209 which is 70.2% of anticipated cost.  Revenues are at 
$103,782 or 65.9% of planned.  This shows that after city’s fee adjustment and the contractor’s annual rate 
increase the City is slightly behind matching revenues to expenses.  I will remind the Council that negotiations to 
reduce contract expenses through adjustments in services was rejected by the contractor.  The agreement will 
be up for reconsideration in the next 1.5 years. 

 
2. Utility Audit Services 

The vendor is currently conducting the audit and should have results in the next 2 weeks. 
 

3. Oak Road Park Pavilion Project 
The vendor has started and is anticipated to complete the project on time in late April. 
 

4. Paving Project 
The vendor has started making final arrangements with public works and anticipates beginning work in the next 
2 weeks. 

5. Police/Fire Roof Project 
The vendor is roughly 95% done with the project.  Once gutters are complete public works will resolve lingering 
water runoff issues. 

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  84



To: Adam Ledford, City Manager 
From: Mike Poole, Chief 
Subject: February Monthly Report 
Date: March 1st, 2024 

 
The Above is the total number of calls broken down into three categories.  “Norris Watershed”, includes all calls for service and 
patrols conducted inside the watershed.  Traffic Enforcement is the total amount of all documented sessions and stops within 
the city. The “All Other Calls” category includes all other calls for service, both officer-initiated calls and incoming calls from 
residents are grouped into this category. 

Below are some of the calls taken by police this month: 

Accident – Motor Vehicle 3 Arrest of a Wanted Subject 1 

Abandoned Vehicle 1 Assist Other Agency 1 

Public Assist 2 Intoxicated Person 1 

Animal Complaint 3 Open Door / Gate 1 

B.O.L.O – A.P.B. 2 Threats/Assault 1 
Case Follow Up Investigations 15 Suspicious Person-vehicle-Activity 10 

Contact or Locate Person 1 Theft of Property 1 

Disturbance 2 Traffic Enforcement 41 

Disabled Vehicle 4 Traffic Complaint-Control-Hazard 11 

Domestic Problem- Domestic Standby 3 Traffic Stops 18 

EDP / Suicidal Person 2 Recovery of Property 2 

Death investigation 1 Watershed Patrol/property checks 133 

Fraud Investigation 2 Welfare Check 4 

Officer Investigations 5 Stationary Observation at Norris Dam 1 

Illegal Parking 2 Vandalism 1 

Aggravated Stalking 1   

49%

21%

30%

Calls Broken Down By Numbers

Norris Watershed

Traffic

All Other Calls

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  85



In the month of February, the Norris Police Department had documented a total of 576 Calls for 
service.  Of the 576 Total entries, 143 came in by complainant or were self-initiated and 
required some type of police action.  

 

 

 Officers conducted a total of 105 Patrols and 28 property checks in and through the 
Norris Watershed. An additional 4 calls for service were answered. This accounted for a 
total of 137 calls for service and 42.37 Total hours spent in or on the Norris Watershed.  

 The Norris Rifle Range annual membership ended September at 760, which is up 29 
permits from last year (2022-2023). 

 At the time of this report, the roof for the fire bay is almost complete.  All the roofing is 
up and in place.  We are currently waiting on guttering and trim.  However, I can report 
that the Fire Bay is dry.   

 Norris Police Department lost one officer who took a job with another agency during the 
month of February.  We will be working to fill this position as soon as possible.   
 
 

 

 

 

________________________ 
Mike Poole 
Chief of Police 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  86



 

Monthly Fire Report 

 

To: City Manager 

From: Rick Roach (Fire Chief)   

Date: 03/01/2024   

 

The Norris Fire Department was dispatched to 24 calls for service inside the city in the 
month of February. The fire department was also requested for mutual aid for an additional 14 
calls.  

The fire department is coordinating with the Norris Watershed Commission to help with 
a controlled burn sometime in mid to late March.  

The fire department has added two new members to their roster, one a returning 
firefighter, and one who will need to complete the fire academy.   

 The fire department is also working with the Anderson County Dispatch Center to 
transition from the UHF channel to the Tennessee Valley System. This move will enhance the 
inoperability of both the dispatch center and the responding fire departments.  

 Anderson County Government, along with the Anderson County Fire Commission has 
received 300 new digital portable radios that will be programmed to the TN Valley System, and 
distributed to county firefighters. Since the Norris Fire Department has already purchased the 
same radios, from Anderson County funds, we will only receive new radios when we have a new 
firefighter join our department. However, this will eliminate future costs of portable radios as 
long as Anderson County continues the radio program.  

 

Rick Roach 
Norris Fire Chief 

 

 

  

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  87



Community building Maint. 49 Loads
Public Works Building Maint. 28 0 Leaves
Public Safety Building Maint. 2 2 Brush
McNeeley Building Maint. 24 0 Chips
Lions Pavilion & Gazebo 0
Equip. & Vehicle Maintenance 120
Watershed, Rifle Range, Trash & Litter 151.5
Street and Roads 12
Mowing 0
Sidewalks 0
Leaf Collection 0
Brush Pickup, Pruning, Mulching, Tree Work 27
Drainage (Gutter/Basins) Maintenance 22
Eric Harold Park 10
Oak Road Park 8
Ridgeway Park 32.5
Town Clean Up/ garbage, Litter in Town 35.5
Animal control 24
Signs repair and replace 2
Tree Commission 1
Volunteer Fire Dept. 1
Overtime 0

Administration Work 4

Vehicle Report Current Miles for
Mileage the Month

2017 Chev 61906 788
2013 Chev 560541 493
2000 Ford n/a n/a
2005 Dump Truck 56996 100
2022 Kenworth 3049 99
Equipment Report
Chipper, Vermeer 1995 CUB Walk Behin
Leaf Vacuum 2000 7

Hustler
Bobcat CUB
Kubota Kubota Tractor       

CITY OF NORRIS
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

  MONTHLY REPORT 
February Year 2024

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  88



1 Community
a) Repair garbage can lids around town
b) New bench installed at Ridgeway Rd Island

2 Community Building
a) Weekly cleaning and set ups
b) Buffed floors
c) Cleaned out closets in Gym to use as storage 
d) Picked up new racks 
e) Worked on New lighting for parking lot 

3 McNeeley Municipal Building
a) Weekly cleaning 
b) New locks for Archives door
c) New keys for museum entrance doors
d) Finished up repairs in kitchen storage room of museum

4 Lion's Pavillion and Gazebo
a) Trash in trash cans picked up weekly

5 Vehicles and Equipment
a) Monthly checklist performed
b) Repaired plow disc
c) Repaired brakes and lighting on utility trailer
d) Repair work truck heating and air controller
e) Repaired wiring for truck trailer brakes
f) Installed new brake controller on 2017 Chevy
g) Repaired 2013 Chevy door latch
h) Repaired side by side tires

6 Public Works Building 
a) Weekly cleaning 

7 Public Safety Building
a) Worked with contractor with electrical issues 
b) Fire extinguishers took to firehall for yearly check

7 Drainage
a) Cleaned as needed

8 Streets  / Sidewalks / Right of Ways
a) Brush pick up performed monthly

9 Parks
a) New Pavilion started at Oak Park
b) Signs repaired, repainted, and installed
c) New bench at Ridgeway Park
d) Oak Park will be getting rubber mulch and 

new barriers
e) New kiosks installed at all parks

10 Watershed
a) Bush hogged openings to be burned
b) Disc or plowed around edges of wildlife openings to be burned
c) Ordered more marking paint for clear cut 
d) Ordered signs for Clear cut
e) Repaired gate at high point and Upper Clear creek
f) Removed fallen trees off trails 
g) Cleaned out Sunmmer crew storage shed

Rifle Range
1) removed all shell casings and installed new gravel 

around shooting sheds.
2) Filled Mud hole with gravel
3) Blew shed roofs off shooting sheds

4) Met with Ralph about new shooting lane
5) 2/8 2 boards replaced

6) 2/15  1 board replaced
7) 2/29  2 boards replaced

12 Animal Control

a) Fed daily and kennels cleaned
b) One cat in and one was adopted adopted

PUBLIC WORKS MONTHLY REPORT
Month & Year Work Completed

Page 2

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  89



Parks and Recrea on Director’s Report 

February 2024 

1. Con nued coordina on with Hicks Construc on on the Pavilion project at Oak Rd. Park. 
2. Researched and gathered documents to assist CDP with the comple on of the Norris 

Parks and Rec Master Plan. 
3. Developed early 2024-2025 Budget for Parks and Recrea on ac vi es and 

communicated with the City Manager 
4. Developed plans for Creamery Park project approved by City Council. 
5. Con nued work on 2024 LPRF Grant applica on process. 

Improvements at Parks and Rec Facili es 
Project Park(s) Descrip on 
Kiosks Eric Harold, Oak Road, 

Ridgeway 
Kiosks installed at each facility by Public 
Works 

Pavilion Oak Road Park Ground broken; founda on work being 
done. 

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  90



Norris Recreation Commission Meeting 

December 19th, 2023 

NRC Members: Lisa Higginbotham (1/26), Brianne Kibler (5/26), Elizabeth Mason (1/27), Sarah Miceli 
(1/25), Kathie Murphy (8/2025), Chuck Nicholson (12/24), Chris Mitchell (12/24) 

Members in Attendance: Lisa Higginbotham, Brianne Kibler, Elizabeth Mason, Sarah Miceli, Chuck 
Nicholson, Chris Mitchell 

Members Not in Attendance: Kathie Murphy 

Guests: Loretta Painter, Bailey Whited 

Call to Order:   7:02 p.m. 

Approve Minutes: all in favor of approval 

Old Business: 

 
1. City Council Update: Chris M. advises that we start thinking about how we will spend the next 

lump sum of Recreation money.  Would like to see us talk about the process of the pavilion for 
Oak Road Park and the process of starting the next pavilion at Eric Harold park.  Bailey will report 
back to us next meeting with a park assessment and regarding safety of equipment.  Bailey will 
also share some older assessment documents with the group.  Chris M would like to get tennis 
court bids for us to review.  Re-do, repair, multi-function pickleball/tennis courts etc.  Bailey will 
work on this.  Lisa H. make sure to check the safety of the parks, especially if insurance has 
noted unsafe conditions in the parks.  Chris M. safety items will definitely be funded, it is not an 
either/or situation.  Chris M. makes a motion that Bailey be given the task of bringing executable 
bid options for tennis courts, multi-purpose, re-do or replace, change location etc. for us to 
consider to recommend to council by next Recreation meeting.  Elizabeth seconds the motion.  
All in agreement, motion passed. 
 

2. City of Norris Park & Rec 10 Year Plan (Community Development Partners): group discussed the 
Norris short-term and long-term priorities list in detail. 

  
3. Update on Capital Improvements (Bailey Whited):  OR Park pavilion, tennis court discussion 

 
4. Update on NRC Donation Perpetual Fund (Tennis Facility, etc) (Bailey Whited): discussion of 

audit numbers and perpetual funds with the group 
 

5. Norris Disc Golf: no updates 
 

6. Pickleball:  request that pickleball nets be replaced, would like nets on wheels for convenience, 
Franklin brand $159 x 2 (2 nets), Kathie and Katie offered to fund raise to try to recover some of 
the cost.  Small items of equipment budget available.  Brianne requests a motion to authorize up 
to $500 from the Recreation budget to purchase 2 Franklin portable pickleball nets and indoor 
pickleball balls.  Sarah seconds, all in favor.  Motion passed. 
 

7. Norris Lions Club Workday: no plans as of right now, deferred for early spring 
 

8. Adopt a Park Program: no plans as of right now 
 

9. Fundraising Opportunities: We cannot solicit donations.  We can sell items if we limit the sales to 
two 30-day periods 

10. Norris Recreation Commission Charter Review:  will sit down at some point to look at charter, 
Brianne will send it out to the commission 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  91



 
11. Halloween Events Recap:   Brianne has a list of feedback and will send it out to the group.  

Events went really well.  Elizabeth was really taken aback at how great the big Halloween trail 
event went. 
 

12. Norris Shines:  Scavenger hunt, Norris Shines event doing really well.   
 
New Business: 

1. Schedule Park Walk Through:  1/10/23 @ Eric Harold Park at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 
Next Meeting Date: 1/16/23 
 .   

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  92



Norris Recreation Commission Special Called Meeting 

February 6th, 2024 

NRC Members: Brianne Kibler (5/24), Sarah Miceli (1/25), Kathie Murphy (8/2025), Chuck Nicholson 
(12/24), Chris Mitchell (12/24), Lisa Higginbotham (1/26), Elizabeth Mason,  

Members in Attendance: Brianne, Sarah, Kathie, Chuck, Chris, Lisa, Elizabeth 

Members Not in Attendance:  n/a 

Guests:  Loretta, Pam, Sue Hill, Kim Hill, Bailey Whited 

Call to Order:  6:00 p.m. 

New Business: 
 

1. Park & Rec Master Plan Implementation Tables: discussion of edits needed for Master Plan 
power point.  Several things left out.  Rewording of ‘goals’ vs ‘action list’ and vision statement 
(broad).  Discussion of which slides to eliminate.  Chris would like it changed tonight so that he 
can submit the letter of intent to Council next week.  Major items that need to be referenced.   
 
Discussion of scope of plan:  big projects over the next 3 years, keep ideas broad so that there 
can be flexibility in the coming months.  Each member went through what they’d like to add to the 
list, Bailey keeping list.  Chris suggests fundraising if allowed – for grant matching. 
 
PUBLIC:  Sue Hill would like NRC to consider activities for seniors, considering the population of 
seniors. Kim Hill would like to see more senior activities out and available.  Loretta would like to 
see money coming from ACS to get money for the tennis courts if the schools plan on using 
them.  Chris also suggests TVA, Walmart, etc. 
 
List of proposed items:  dual use tennis/pickle ball courts, post tension concrete, lighting, 
basketball, bathrooms w/ ADA, ADA walkways/entrances/connectivity and pavilion improvements, 
ADA parking lots, address ADA accessibility in parks. 
 
Motion (Chuck) to proceed with working on the grant application based on the proposed 
list (Kathy) seconds. 
 

2. Grant Intent Application 
  
Next Meeting Date: 2/20/24 (regular meeting) 
  
  
 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  93



 
NORRIS WATERSHED BOARD MINUTES 

January 18, 2024 
 

The following members were present: 
 
Chairperson:  Ralph Jordan   Present   3yr. Term Expiration – 6/2024 
Member:  Robin Sain    Present   3yr. Term Expiration – 1/2026 
Member:  Allen Hendry    Present   3yr. Term Expiration – 1/2026 
Member:  Gene Lane    Absent   3yr. Term Expiration – 1/2025 
Member:  Dennis Yankee   Present   3yr. Term Expiration – 6/2024 
Member:  OPEN    Absent   2yr. Term Expiration – OPEN 
Member:  Bill Grieve    Present   City Council Representative 
 

Quorum Met 
 

I. Call to Order   
 
The meeting was called to order by Ralph Jordan at 5:00 pm. 

 
II. Approval of the Agenda 

 
No action was taken. 
 

III. Minutes:   
 

A motion was made by Bill Grieve and seconded by Allen Hendry to approve the minutes of the 
November 15, 2023 meeting while correcting minor adjustments.   
The proposal passing on a vote of 5 to 0 as follows: 
Yes:  Ralph Jordan, Allen Hendry, Bill Grieve, Dennis Yankee, Robin Sain 
 

IV. Hear the Public: 
 

Norris Chief of Police Mike Poole requested development of a training range attached to the existing 
shooting range in the watershed.  The concept was well received and plans for further development 
arranged. 
 

V. New Business  
 

 Election of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson - Ralph Jordan opened the floor for nomination for 
Chair and Vice Chair.   
 
A motion was made by Bill Grieve and seconded by Robin Sain to appoint Ralph Jordan 
Chairperson and Allen Hendry Vice Chairperson of the Norris Watershed Board for 2024. 
The proposal passing on a vote of 5 to 0 as follows: 
Yes:  Ralph Jordan, Allen Hendry, Bill Grieve, Dennis Yankee, Robin Sain 
 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  94



 Setting of Future Meeting Day and Time – Ralph Jordan presented options for setting the date 
and time for meetings moving forward.  After a brief discussion by members on available Allen 
Hendry motioned and Dennis Yankee seconded to set 6 p.m. on the 3rd Thursday of each month 
to be the official time and date of Watershed Board meetings. 
The proposal passing on a vote of 5 to 0 as follows: 
Yes:  Ralph Jordan, Allen Hendry, Bill Grieve, Dennis Yankee, Robin Sain 

 
VI. Old Business  

 
 Cleark Creek Springhead – Ralph Jordan updated that he and the contractor had been unable to 

meet up before this meeting. 
 
 Clear Creek Parking Area/Stream Bank Stabilization – No update was given. 
 
 Boundary Trail Tree Removal/Cleanup – Ralph Jordan provided details about 2 trees coming 

down in the watershed at Boundary.  The tops of the trees making it across the road and 
damaging Dan Ott’s property. 

 
 Tree Complaint Policies – A deeper review of laws and responsibility was discussed before 

updating the current policies on tree removal. 
 

 Mini Excavator – City Manager Ledford asked the Board to take part in the joint purchase of 
equipment currently out for bid.  The general fund and utility fund having already committed to 
the project.  A motion was made by Dennis Yankee and seconded by Robin Sain to authorize a 
commitment of the watershed fund of 1/3 of the cost up to, but not to exceed $30,000.00. 
The proposal passing on a vote of 5 to 0 as follows: 
Yes:  Ralph Jordan, Allen Hendry, Bill Grieve, Dennis Yankee, Robin Sain 
 

 Lumber Sale – Joe Feeman presented his plan to go out for a lumber sale in the watershed. 
 

VII. Reports 
 
 Financials – Written report submitted, summitted without comment. 
 Norris Public Works – Written report submitted without comment. 
 Norris Public Safety – Written report submitted without comment. 
 Resource Management – Written report submitted without comment. 

 
VIII. Adjournment 

 

Motion by Bill Grieve and seconded by Dennis Yankee to adjourn at 6:08 p.m., All: AYE 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  95



 Norris Animal Shelter Commission 
February 19, 2024 

 
Current ASC Members:  Lee Borgers (4/2024), Maggie Sheehy (6/2024), Hannah Lawson (1/2026), Tracy Haley 
(10/2024), Debbie Grinder (4/2025), Leesa Campbell (10/2026) 
Members present: Lee Borgers, Maggie Sheehy, Hannah Lawson, Tracy Haley, Debbie Grinder, Leesa Campbell 
Public Present: none 
 
Meeting called to order at 7:03 pm 
 
Hear the public: none 
 
Approval of minutes: Tracy moved to accept as written, Debbie seconded.  Motion passed.  
 
Shelter Report: Maggie  
 Cats:  

Freya-returned to the shelter.  She had been with the same family that adopted Piper, who was very unhappy 
having another cat in the house.   

 Annie-adopted 
 

Dogs:    
Monty- currently at the clinic, scheduled for his 2nd injection tomorrow morning then he will return to his 
current foster home.  Hopefully they will decide to adopt him! 

 
Maggie reported that we have had several monetary donations for which thank you cards have been written.  Heather 
Archer organized a food donation drive for the shelter.  If any of it is close to expiring, it can be donated to Anderson 
County.  Maggie has been trying to help Nancy Boody trap a cat “Bubba” to neuter him but he has been very evasive.   
 
Update on Bonnie and Clyde, they are both doing very well and happy in their new families! 
 
 
Financial Report: did not receive a report 
 
Old Business: none 

 
New Business:  

Community Development Board- they sent an offer of help with anything we may need.  Hannah suggested a 
representative of the CDB join us for our next meeting to explain more about what they have in mind.   

 
Possible neglect case- Tracy concerned for a dog at a neighbor’s house that has a history of neglect.  Another 
neighbor thinks they dog may have died.  Tracy has contacted the police department several times requesting a 
check of the animal but it has not happened.  Hannah suggested at this point she may need to contact Adam if 
they are going against city ordinances and the police refuse to intervene.  Leesa said to let her discuss the 
matter with her husband, who is on the police force.  We will wait and see what he says and go from there. 

 
Our next meeting is scheduled for March 18, 2024 at 7pm.   
Commission meeting adjourned at 7:37 pm 
 
Respectfully submitted, Hannah Lawson 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  96



 

City of NORRIS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES:  January 25, 2024  

1 
Submitted by: Charlie Murphy (JANUARY 25, 2024) 

 
Members Present: Will Grinder (exp.: Council Term), George Miceli (exp.: Mar 31, 2024), Laurie Templin (exp.:  

April 30, 2024), Lisa Barger (exp.: Sep.30, 2025), Charlie Murphy (exp.: Feb 28, 2026), Alex 
Munro (exp.: April 30, 2026) 
 

Members Absent: Blake Knight (exp. Nov 30, 2025) 

Location: Norris Community Building 
Guest (s) in Attendance: Bailey Whited 

 

TOPIC DISCUSSION/CONCLUSIONS RECOMMENDATIONS/FOLLOW UP   
(Who/What/When) 

Called To 
Order Time 

6:00 PM  

Hear From the 
Public 

 
 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

n Revisions needed to December minutes, Murphy to complete and 
distribute.  

 

Old Business  
 
 
 

 

 

New Business n The group discussed options for updating the city's entrance signage. 
George Miceli presented two design concepts to be shared at the 
upcoming city council workshop. It was suggested that George Reedy 
evaluate the structural integrity of the existing stone pillars supporting 
one of the signs. If found to be unsound, rebuilding the structure was 

- Have George Reedy evaluate the 
structural integrity of the existing 
sign pillars 
- Reach out to a concrete contractor 
about pouring a solid base for a new 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  97



 

City of NORRIS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES:  January 25, 2024  

2 
Submitted by: Charlie Murphy (JANUARY 25, 2024) 

TOPIC DISCUSSION/CONCLUSIONS RECOMMENDATIONS/FOLLOW UP   
(Who/What/When) 

recommended. Don offered to get a quote for poured concrete 
caps/edges to mimic a stone look for the new designs. Concerns 
around visibility and aesthetics from different angles were raised. 
Landscaping the area was proposed to complement any new signage. 
The PowerPoint presentation for the workshop and next steps were 
assigned accordingly. 

  

sign design 
- Put together a PowerPoint 
presentation for the city council 
workshop on signs 
- Circulate the group's bylaws for 
any proposed changes ahead of the 
next meeting 
- Follow up on landscaping ideas to 
enhance the appearance of any new 
signage 

Adjournment n Meeting adjourned at 6:36 PM  

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  98



 

City of NORRIS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES:  February 28, 2024 

1 

Submitted by: Lisa Barger, February 28, 2024  

 

Members Present: Will Grinder (exp.: Council Term), George Miceli (exp.: Feb 28, 2027),  

Laurie Templin (exp.: April 30, 2024), Lisa Barger (exp.: Sep.30, 2025),  
Alex Munro (exp. Apr 30, 2026), Charlie Murphy (exp.: Feb 28, 2026) 

Members Absent: Blake Knight ( exp. Dec 31, 2025), 

Location: Norris Community Building 

Guest(s) in Attendance: Loretta Painter 

 
 

TOPIC DISCUSSION/CONCLUSIONS RECOMMENDATIONS/ 
FOLLOW UP   

(Who/What/When) 

Called to 
order TIME 

6:02 Quorum requirements meet with 5 voting members present   

Hear from 
the 
Public 

None  

Approval 
of 
minute
s 

APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY: To approve January meeting minutes (Munro 
motion, Miceli seconded) 

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  99



 

City of NORRIS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES:  February 28, 2024 

2 

Submitted by: Lisa Barger, February 28, 2024  

Old 
Busine
ss 

1. Annual CDB Officers Selection for 2024: All votes were unanimous 

a. Chairperson – Will Grinder (Miceli motion, Barger seconded) 
b. Secretary – Lisa Barger (Grinder Motion, Miceli seconded) 
c. Communication Director – George Miceli (Munro motion, Grinder seconded) 

2. Entrance Signs: Discussion on sign project moving forward and CDB’s role. 
Members no longer see a role for the CDB with the sign project. 

APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY: (Munro motion, Miceli second) The motion is that 
we recommend to city council that the city redirect the energy for the sign project 
into a full city branding project and make the signs part of that project. Further 
recommend it be spearheaded by a consulting company such as BlueSpace at 
such time when funds become available from tourism revenue. 

3. Ordinance Review: Miceli suggested changes in original ordinance as follows:  

a.  Section 2-202 (1)- Removal of Planning Commission  member as a required 
member. 

b.  Section 2-202- A quorum of the board shall consist of 4 voting members. 

c. Section 2-204- Reword City of Norris “The Norris Five Year Plan 1998-2003 
to be generic and not out of date. 

d. Section 2-205- Change Annual Report from fiscal year to calendar year. 

APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY: To present changes to city manager for 
review an incorporation into the city-wide board/commission ordinance reviews. 
(Miceli motion, Barger seconded) 

4. Bylaws: Member present decided that any changes to the bylaws will be 
tabled until the changes in the CDB ordinance are approved. 

ACTION: Miceli will present 
this at next City Council 
meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION:  
Miceli will meet with city 
manager Adam Ledford 
to present CDB 
ordinance changes.  

    Grinder will meet with 
the city manager to 
review our ordinance to 
get a more defined 
example of the role of 
CDB’s actions and how 
we can communicate to 
other boards our role. 
 
All actions above will be 
done before the CDB 
March meeting. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  100



 

City of NORRIS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES:  February 28, 2024 

3 

Submitted by: Lisa Barger, February 28, 2024  

New 
Busine
ss 

1. Discussion of Animal Shelter request: Lee Borger request that a CDB 
member to attend the March 18, 2024 (7pm) Animal Shelter meeting. Miceli and 
Barger to attend. 
 

2. Discussion CDB role in the formation of a 501(c)3 non-profit. 

a. Grinder stated it’s relatively easy to do. It only takes three people willing to 
handle the paperwork – chairperson (marketer), treasurer 
(bookkeeper/accountant, and secretary (recorder). Having someone able to 
handle the financials is critical. 

b. Discussion of a Chamber of Commerce: All agreed that Norris would 
benefit from having its own chamber of commerce that focused on 
businesses in Norris. Non-business community development projects are 
already handled by the Norris Area Community Foundation.  
 
All agreed that the absolute pre-requisite was finding a person willing to take 
on the role of being founder/promoter/champion. No one in the group 
expressed any interest in being that person 
 
Miceli suggested CDB could sponsor a town hall/public to get community 
input and generate interest in Norris residents creating a Norris chamber of 
commerce. This would need to be a formatted agenda for a town hall/public 
forum to be further discussed at the CDB March meeting. 

c. Grocery Store Non-Profit: Setting up a non-profit to take over the Archer’s 
grocery store was also discussed. Currently a group of Norris residents are 
meeting with the Knoxville Food Co-op to pursue that possibility. 

d. All present agreed that forming any kind of non-profit was not something that 
CDB as a city board could do. However, CDB members can participate as 
private citizens. 

ACTION: Miceli will 
explain the ordinance 
mandate of CDB to 
see if Shelter 
members see any 
need for CDB 
assistance 

 

 

ACTION: ALL CDB 
MEMBERS - will 
focus on what it 
would take to form a 
Chamber of 
Commerce and 
therefore how to run 
a town hall in this 
regard.  

 

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  101



 

City of NORRIS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES:  February 28, 2024 

4 

Submitted by: Lisa Barger, February 28, 2024  

TOPIC DISCUSSION/CONCLUSIONS RECOMMENDATIONS/ 
FOLLOW UP   

(Who/What/When) 

Adjournme
nt 

7:40pm: Motion Miceli, second Templin; unanimous approval to adjourn  

 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  102



Norris Little Theatre Board Meeting  

February 15, 2024 

 

Members Present: 

Marlene Kibler 
Loretta Painter 
Vicki Smith 
Cynthia Wyse 
Absent – May Boardman 
 
Guests Present: 
Martin Hennessee – Play Director 
Adam Ledford – City Manager 
 
The February Norris Little Theatre (NLT) meeting was called to order by Chair Marlene 
Kibler at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Hear from the Public – nothing to report 
 
Loretta made a motion to approve the January minutes, and Vicki seconded. Motion 
carried. 
 

 Martin discussed his concerns for the play and informed us about auditions 
starting Friday at the church, along with the possibility of 12 people coming to try 
for the part of Liza. Rehearsal time and places were also discussed.  

 Liz will sign the Stage Manager agreement, and give it to Adam Ledford, City 
Manager. 

 Saturday, April 6, will be the play “set-up” date at the Museum.  
 Loretta nominated officers for the 2024 Board members: 

o Marlene Kibler –Chairperson 
o Loretta Painter – Vice Chairperson 
o May Boardman – Secretary 

Vicki seconded. The motion carried. 
 
The next meeting will be Thursday, March 21, at 7 p.m. We will go back to our regular 
schedule of the Third Thursday in each month. 
  
Vicki made a motion, seconded by Loretta, to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried. 

 
Submitted by Vicki Smith 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  103



1 
 

 
MINUTES 

NORRIS PLANNING COMMISSION 
 February 5, 2024 

 
 

I. Call to Order: 
 
Chairman Feeman called the meeting to order at 6pm. 
 
Members Present:  Joe Feeman: Chairman, Loy Johnson: 
Vice Chairman, Chris Mitchell: Mayor, Loretta Painter, Alex 
Munro: Secretary, Bob Sain, and Mike Carberry 
 
Members Absent: None 

Others Present: Mr. Broyles: Big Creak Marine owner, 

Tony Crutchfield: Surveyor, Joe Deathridge: Chairman BZA, 
Bailey Whited: Assistant City Manager, Kathryn Baldwin: 
East TN Development District 

 
II. Adoption of Agenda 

 
Mayor requested to add report of individual projects 
referenced in the ETDD monthly report for discussion. 
 

III. Minutes – January 2, 2024  
 

Mr. Sain made a motion to approve the Minutes of the 
January 2, 2024, Planning Commission meeting as presented. 
Ms. Painter seconded the motion, all present voted aye. 
Motion carried. 

   
IV. Business Items 

 
1. Big Creek Marine – Final Plat 
 
The two-lot Final Plat for Big Creek Marina site was presented. 
The plat identifies a lot line to separate the property into two 
lots. One lot will support the Boat sales and showroom area 
with frontage on the Andersonville Hwy and is zoned C-2. The 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  104



2 
 

second lot will house a self-storage facility zoned I-1. The plat 
also identifies the abandoned ROW recently approved by the 
Norris City Council. Commission members discussed details of 
the plat and the abandonment of ROW. Following discussion 
Mr. Munro made a motion to approve the plat with all staff 
comments (noted below) seconded by Mr. Sain. All present 
voted aye, motion carried.  

• Identify Zone District for each individual lot. This 
information can be identified on Plat or referenced in Note 
section. 

• Identify all setbacks required by Zone designation. This 
information can be delineated on Plat or referenced in 
Note section.  

• Norris is a Municipal Planning Commission. Please correct 
references to “Regional Planning Commission.” 

• Recommend Signature Block for City to relinquish any and 
all interests in the ROW which has been abandoned. 
Include reference of Ordinance number which abandoned 
ROW and date of enactment. 

• Label ROW “to be abandoned”.  

• 12’ Utility Easement required adjacent all rear and side lot 
lines. Please add to Note section or delineate on Final Plat. 

 
2. Big Creek Marine – Site Plan 

 
The Site Plan for Big Creek Marine was considered which 
identified all improvements and support infrastructure to 
accommodate both the Sales/Service area and the Self-
Storage Warehousing. Commission members discussed the 
details of the Plan and staff comments. Following discussion 
Mr. Munro made a motion to approve the Site Plan with all 
staff comments (noted below) with the exception of the 
Landscaping Plan and Architectural details which can be 
reviewed by staff and referred to Planning Commission if 
necessary. Ms. Johnson seconded the motion, all present 
voted aye. Motion carried. 
 

• Please remove references to Subdivision Plat on Site Plan 
to determine compliance with Zoning requirements. 

• Identify Zone District for each individual lot.  

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  105



3 
 

• Identify distance of building from lot line to determine 
compliance with C-2 Zoning setback requirements. 

• Identify distance of building from lot line to determine 
compliance with I-1 Zoning setback requirements. 

• Please delineate the extent of the paved area for retail 
space. 

• Identify method of capturing stormwater and method of 
disposal in paved area on Showroom lot. 

• Size and dimensions of proposed buildings omitted. 

• No parking spaces are shown. Please delineate and 
provide dimensions of parking spaces. See Section #14-
405. 

• Utility connections to serve buildings are omitted. 

• Location and dimensions of proposed signage omitted. 
Please see Section #14-411, Items #5 and #7. A separate 
sign permit is required prior to erection of signage. 

• Curb cuts to State Hwy. #61 and/or Acuff lane omitted. 
Please delineate and provide dimensions of individual 
points of access including turning radius for boat delivery. 
No State or City ROW may be used to unload deliveries. 
Please see section #14-401 item #10 for Access Control. 

• Seal of professional who prepared the Site Plan omitted.  

• Please identify loading and unloading area for C-2 lot. 
Please see Section #14-406.  

• No Landscaping is shown; compliance cannot be 
determined at this time. Please see section #14-417 and 
#14-420 for Landscaping and buffering requirements.  

• No site work or disturbance is allowed pending submittal 
of a Storm Water Prevention Plan Permit (SWPP) is 
obtained from TDEC and a copy provided to City Staff. 

 
3. Election of Officers: 

 
Chairman: Ms. Johnson made a motion to elect Mr. 
Feeman as Chairman, seconded by Mr. Munro. All present 
voted aye, motion carried. 
Vice Chairman: Mr. Munro made a motion to elect Ms. 
Johnson as Vice Chairman, seconded by Mr. Sain. All 
present voted aye, motion carried. 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  106



4 
 

Secretary: Mr. Feeman made a motion to elect Mr. Munro 
as Secretary, seconded by Ms. Painter. All present voted 
aye, motion carried. 

V.  New Business 
 

1. Shane Carney: ETDD 
 
Mayor Mitchell discussed the Monthly reports distributed 
by the ETDD with Ms. Baldwin who explained the process. 
No action taken.  

 
VI.  Adjournment 

 
Mr. Munro made a motion to adjourn the Planning 

Commission meeting at 7:30, seconded by Ms. Painter. All 
present voted aye. Motion carried. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________       

   _________________________ 
Alex Munro, Secretary      

   Date 

Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  107



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  108



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  109



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  110



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  111



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  112



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  113



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  114



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  115



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  116



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  117



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  118



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  119



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  120



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  121



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  122



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  123



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  124



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  125



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  126



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  127



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  128



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  129



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  130



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  131



Norris City Council Meeting

March 11, 2024 |  132


	0 - Council Agenda 3.11.2024
	1 - Council Minutes 2.12.2024
	2 - Ord 672 - Stormwater Utility
	2.5 - Timber Sale Bid Sheet
	3.1 - Res 1-2024 - Stage Manager Contract
	3.2 - LT Stage MGR Agreement
	4 - Res 2-2024 - NACF Grant
	5 - Res. 3-2024 - CUB Policy
	5.5 - Ord. 673 Budget Amendment
	5.7 - Norris - CDP LLC - TDEC ARPA Competitive Admin Contract
	ATTACHMENT A -  TDEC ARPA Competitive 7.2022.pdf
	$45,000.00


	5.8 - Res. 4-2024 Grant Admin Services Agreement
	6.1 - Statement of Revenues February 2024
	6.2 - GFFebruary2024Expenditures
	6.3 - General Fund Balance Report Feb 2024
	6.4 - Street Aid Fund Balance Report Feb 2024
	6.5 - Watershed Fund Balance Report Feb 2024
	6.6 - Solid Waste Fund Balance Report Feb 2024
	6.7 - Waterworks Fund Balance Report Feb 2024
	6.8 - Drug Control Fund Balance Report Feb 2024
	6.9 - City Manager's Report 3.11.2024
	7 - Police Report 3.1.2024
	8 - Fire Report 3.1.2024
	10 - PW Report Feb 2024
	11 - Parks and Rec Report Feb 2024
	12.1 - Rec Commission minutes 12.19.23
	12.2 - Rec Commission Minutes 2.6.24
	13 - Watershed Minutes Jan 18 2024
	14 - Animal Shelter Commission Minutes 2.19.2024
	15.1 - CDB Minutes 01252024
	15.2 - CDB Minutes 2.28.2024
	16 - Little Theatre Minutes 2.15.2024
	17 - February 5 2024 PC Minutes
	18 - 2024 02 21 Full BOD



